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·1· · · · · · · · ·CHAIR DREW:· Okay.· Good afternoon.

·2· ·Kathleen Drew, Chair of the Energy Facility Site

·3· ·Evaluation Council, bringing our monthly meeting to

·4· ·order.

·5· · · · · · Ms. Grantham, will you call the role.

·6· · · · · · · · ·ANDREA GRANTHAM:· Certainly, Chair Drew.

·7· · · · · · Department of Commerce?

·8· · · · · · · · ·ELIZABETH OSBORNE:· Elizabeth Osborne.

·9· ·Present.

10· · · · · · · · ·ANDREA GRANTHAM:· Department of Ecology?

11· · · · · · · · ·ELI LEVITT:· Eli Levitt.· Present.

12· · · · · · · · ·ANDREA GRANTHAM:· Department of Fish and

13· ·Wildlife?

14· · · · · · · · ·MIKE LIVINGSTON:· Mike Livingston.

15· ·Present.

16· · · · · · · · ·ANDREA GRANTHAM:· Department of Natural

17· ·Resources?

18· · · · · · · · ·LENNY YOUNG:· Lenny Young.· Present.

19· · · · · · · · ·ANDREA GRANTHAM:· Utilities and

20· ·Transportation Commission?

21· · · · · · · · ·STACY BREWSTER:· Stacy Brewster.· Present.

22· · · · · · · · ·ANDREA GRANTHAM:· For Local Government and

23· ·Optional State Agencies.· For the Horse Heaven Project,

24· ·for Benton County, do we have Ed Brost?

25· · · · · · For the Badger Mountain Project, for Douglas



·1· ·County?

·2· · · · · · For the Wautoma Solar Project, for Benton

·3· ·County, Dave Sharp?

·4· · · · · · Washington State Department of Transportation,

·5· ·Paul Gonseth?

·6· · · · · · · · ·PAUL GONSETH:· Paul Gonseth.· Present.

·7· · · · · · · · ·ANDREA GRANTHAM:· Hop Hill Solar Project,

·8· ·for Benton County, Paul Krupin?

·9· · · · · · Carriger Solar Project, for Klickitat County,

10· ·Matt Chiles?

11· · · · · · · · ·MATT CHILES:· Matt Chiles.· Present.

12· · · · · · · · ·ANDREA GRANTHAM:· For the Wallula Gap

13· ·Project, for Benton County, Adam Fyall?

14· · · · · · And for Goldeneye BESS, for Skagit County,

15· ·Robby Eckroth?

16· · · · · · · · ·ROBBY ECKROTH:· Robby Eckroth.· Present.

17· · · · · · · · ·ANDREA GRANTHAM:· Assistant Attorney

18· ·Generals.· Jon Thompson?

19· · · · · · And Zack Packer?

20· · · · · · · · ·ZACK PACKER:· Present.

21· · · · · · · · ·ANDREA GRANTHAM:· Administrative Law

22· ·Judges.· Adam Torem?

23· · · · · · · · ·JUDGE TOREM:· Judge Torem.· I am present.

24· · · · · · · · ·ANDREA GRANTHAM:· Laura Bradley?

25· · · · · · Dan Gerard?



·1· · · · · · And Travis Dupree?

·2· · · · · · And I will call Council staff who may be

·3· ·anticipated to speak today.· Sonia Bumpus?

·4· · · · · · · · ·SONIA BUMPUS:· Present.

·5· · · · · · · · ·ANDREA GRANTHAM:· Ami Hafkemeyer?

·6· · · · · · · · ·AMI HAFKEMEYER:· Present.

·7· · · · · · · · ·ANDREA GRANTHAM:· Amy Moon?

·8· · · · · · · · ·AMY MOON:· Amy Moon.· Present.

·9· · · · · · · · ·ANDREA GRANTHAM:· Sara Randolph?

10· · · · · · Sean Greene?

11· · · · · · · · ·SEAN GREENE:· Sean Greene.· Present.

12· · · · · · · · ·ANDREA GRANTHAM:· Lance Caputo?

13· · · · · · · · ·LANCE CAPUTO:· Present.

14· · · · · · · · ·ANDREA GRANTHAM:· Lance Caputo is present

15· ·in the room.

16· · · · · · John Barnes?

17· · · · · · · · ·JOHN BARNES:· Present.

18· · · · · · · · ·ANDREA GRANTHAM:· Joanne Snarski?

19· · · · · · · · ·JOANNE SNARSKI:· Present.

20· · · · · · · · ·ANDREA GRANTHAM:· And Zia Ahmed?

21· · · · · · · · ·ZIA AHMED:· Zia Ahmed.· Present.

22· · · · · · · · ·ANDREA GRANTHAM:· Operational Updates.

23· ·For Kittitas Valley Wind?

24· · · · · · · · ·JARRED CASEDAY:· Jarred Caseday.· Present.

25· · · · · · · · ·ANDREA GRANTHAM:· Wild Horse Wind Power



·1· ·Project?

·2· · · · · · · · ·JENNIFER GALBRAITH:· Jennifer Galbraith.

·3· ·Present.

·4· · · · · · · · ·ANDREA GRANTHAM:· Grays Harbor Energy

·5· ·Center?

·6· · · · · · Chehalis Generation Facility?

·7· · · · · · · · ·JEREMY SMITH:· Jeremy Smith.· Present.

·8· · · · · · · · ·ANDREA GRANTHAM:· Columbia Generating

·9· ·Station?

10· · · · · · · · ·DENIS MEHINAGIC:· Denis Mehinagic.

11· ·Present.

12· · · · · · · · ·ANDREA GRANTHAM:· Columbia Solar?

13· · · · · · · · ·THOMAS CUSHING:· Thomas Cushing.· Present.

14· · · · · · · · ·ANDREA GRANTHAM:· And Goose Prairie Solar?

15· · · · · · · · ·JACOB CRIST:· Jacob Crist.· Present.

16· · · · · · · · ·ANDREA GRANTHAM:· And do we have someone

17· ·present for the Counsel For the Environment?

18· · · · · · · · ·SARAH REYNEVELD:· Yes.· Sarah Reyneveld

19· ·and Yuriy Korol are present.

20· · · · · · · · ·ANDREA GRANTHAM:· Thank you.

21· · · · · · Chair, there is a quorum for all counsels.

22· · · · · · · · ·CHAIR DREW:· Thank you.

23· · · · · · Council members, you have in front of you the

24· ·agenda, proposed agenda for this meeting.· Is there a

25· ·motion to adopt the proposed agenda?



·1· · · · · · · · ·LENNY YOUNG:· Lenny Young.· So moved.

·2· · · · · · · · ·STACY BREWSTER:· Stacy Brewster.· Second.

·3· · · · · · · · ·CHAIR DREW:· All those in favor, say

·4· ·"aye."

·5· · · · · · · · ·MULTIPLE SPEAKERS:· Aye.

·6· · · · · · · · ·CHAIR DREW:· Opposed?

·7· · · · · · It is adopted.

·8· · · · · · Moving on to the meeting minutes.· We have

·9· ·three sets of meeting minutes for today.· The first we

10· ·will take up is the August 13, 2024, Goldeneye BESS

11· ·informational meeting and land-use hearing minutes.· Is

12· ·there a motion to approve the minutes?

13· · · · · · · · ·STACY BREWSTER:· Stacy Brewster.· So

14· ·moved.

15· · · · · · · · ·CHAIR DREW:· Thank you.

16· · · · · · Second?

17· · · · · · · · ·ELI LEVITT:· Eli Levitt.· Second.

18· · · · · · · · ·CHAIR DREW:· Thanks.

19· · · · · · Any corrections or edits from Council members?

20· ·I don't have any.

21· · · · · · Hearing none, all those in favor of approving

22· ·the minutes from the Goldeneye BESS August 13th meeting,

23· ·please say "aye."

24· · · · · · · · ·MULTIPLE SPEAKERS:· Aye.

25· · · · · · · · ·CHAIR DREW:· Opposed?



·1· · · · · · Motion carries.

·2· · · · · · Moving on to the August 21st monthly Council

·3· ·meeting minutes.· Is there a motion to approve those

·4· ·minutes?

·5· · · · · · · · ·ELIZABETH OSBORNE:· Elizabeth Osborne.· So

·6· ·moved.

·7· · · · · · · · ·MIKE LIVINGSTON:· Mike Livingston --

·8· · · · · · · · ·CHAIR DREW:· Elizabeth Osborne --

·9· · · · · · · · ·MIKE LIVINGSTON:· Mike Livingston.

10· ·Second.

11· · · · · · · · ·CHAIR DREW:· Thank you, thank you, thank

12· ·you.

13· · · · · · I have couple of changes/corrections.  I

14· ·believe, on page 7, on line 1.· Let me see where that

15· ·is.· If I can look more closely.· Before quoting the

16· ·governor, I think I should -- there should be a word in

17· ·their quote.· Can you see where that is, Ms. Grantham?

18· · · · · · · · ·ANDREA GRANTHAM:· Is this for the Horse

19· ·Heaven minutes or for the August 21st monthly --

20· · · · · · · · ·CHAIR DREW:· Oh.

21· · · · · · · · ·ANDREA GRANTHAM:· -- meeting?

22· · · · · · · · ·CHAIR DREW:· Thank you.· That's why --

23· · · · · · · · ·ANDREA GRANTHAM:· Of course.

24· · · · · · · · ·CHAIR DREW:· -- I didn't find it.· Yes.

25· ·For the August monthly meeting, I have no corrections.



·1· · · · · · Anyone else?

·2· · · · · · Hearing none, all those in favor of approving

·3· ·the August 21, 2024, monthly Council meeting minutes,

·4· ·say "aye."

·5· · · · · · · · ·MULTIPLE SPEAKERS:· Aye.

·6· · · · · · · · ·CHAIR DREW:· Opposed?

·7· · · · · · Those are approved.

·8· · · · · · Moving on to the August 29th Horse Heaven

·9· ·special meeting minutes.· A motion to approve the

10· ·minutes?

11· · · · · · · · ·STACY BREWSTER:· Stacy Brewster.· So

12· ·moved.

13· · · · · · · · ·ELI LEVITT:· Eli Levitt.· Second.

14· · · · · · · · ·CHAIR DREW:· Thank you.

15· · · · · · Now, page 7, line 1.· Let me see where this is.

16· ·So, really, it's at the beginning of line 1, quote.· It

17· ·should say on line 25, "I know that he also stated that,

18· ·quote, the record is robust."· So that's what should go

19· ·in there.

20· · · · · · Then on page 19, line 14, I have an answer to a

21· ·question from Mr. Livingston, "Well, let me ask one more

22· ·question.· I'm sorry."· And I say, "No."· I believe I

23· ·don't ever say that to Council members who have

24· ·questions.· So even though we don't remember exactly,

25· ·can we -- without objection, I would say, "No problem."



·1· ·Add the word "problem" in there.· And those are all the

·2· ·corrections that I have.· Anyone else?

·3· · · · · · All those in favor with -- of those --

·4· ·approving those minutes as amended, please say "aye."

·5· · · · · · · · ·MULTIPLE SPEAKERS:· Aye.

·6· · · · · · · · ·CHAIR DREW:· Opposed?

·7· · · · · · Motion carries.· Those minutes are amended.

·8· ·Thank you so much to everybody.· And we will move on to

·9· ·Operational Updates.

10· · · · · · Kittitas Valley Wind Project, Mr. Caseday.

11· · · · · · · · ·MR. CASEDAY:· Good afternoon, Chair Drew,

12· ·EFSEC Council, and staff.· This is Jarred Caseday with

13· ·EDP Renewables for the Kittitas Valley Wind Power

14· ·Project.· We have nothing nonroutine to report for the

15· ·period.

16· · · · · · · · ·CHAIR DREW:· Thank you.

17· · · · · · · · ·JARRED CASEDAY:· Thank you.

18· · · · · · · · ·CHAIR DREW:· Wild Horse Wind Power

19· ·Project, Ms. Galbraith.

20· · · · · · · · ·JENNIFER GALBRAITH:· Yes.· Thank you,

21· ·Chair Drew, Council members, and staff.· This is

22· ·Jennifer Galbraith with Puget Sound Energy representing

23· ·the Wild Horse Wind Facility, and I also have nothing

24· ·nonroutine to report for the period.

25· · · · · · · · ·CHAIR DREW:· Thank you.



·1· · · · · · Chehalis Generation Facility, Mr. Smith.

·2· · · · · · · · ·JEREMY SMITH:· Good afternoon, Chair Drew,

·3· ·EFSEC Council, and staff.· Jeremy Smith, the operations

·4· ·manager for the Chehalis Generation Facility, and I have

·5· ·nothing nonroutine to report for the month of August.

·6· · · · · · · · ·CHAIR DREW:· Great.

·7· · · · · · Grays Harbor Energy Center.· I didn't hear

·8· ·Mr. Sherin.· If he is not there; Mr. Barnes?

·9· · · · · · · · ·JOHN BARNES:· Thank you, Chair Drew, and

10· ·Council members.· For the record, this is John Barnes on

11· ·behalf of Sara Randolph, site specialist for Grays

12· ·Harbor facility.· Update is provided in your packet.

13· ·There are no other updates to report at this time.

14· · · · · · · · ·CHAIR DREW:· Thank you.

15· · · · · · · · ·JOHN BARNES:· Thank you.

16· · · · · · · · ·CHAIR DREW:· Columbia Solar, Mr. Cushing.

17· · · · · · · · ·THOMAS CUSHING:· Good afternoon, Chair

18· ·Drew, Council members, EFSEC staff.· This is Thomas

19· ·Cushing speaking on behalf of Columbia Solar.· There are

20· ·no nonroutine updates to report.

21· · · · · · · · ·CHAIR DREW:· Thank you.

22· · · · · · Columbia Generating Station.· Before I go to

23· ·the facility, itself, I'd like Ms. Amy Moon to give us

24· ·an update.

25· · · · · · · · ·AMY MOON:· Thank you, Council Chair Drew.



·1· · · · · · So good afternoon, EFSEC Council members and

·2· ·Council Chair Drew.· For the record, this is Amy Moon

·3· ·reporting on the Columbia Generating Station.· And I

·4· ·want to give a brief introduction to the Council before

·5· ·Energy Northwest, or EN, provides their Council update.

·6· · · · · · Energy Northwest is here today to report on two

·7· ·National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System, or the

·8· ·NPDES, permit noncompliance issues.

·9· · · · · · EFSEC received the required notifications,

10· ·including a 5-day report for an incident reported

11· ·September 10th of 2024 involving a release to the

12· ·Columbia River.· A newly emergent incident was also

13· ·reported this morning just after 7:30 a.m. to EFSEC, the

14· ·statewide Environmental Report Tracking System, which is

15· ·known as ERTS, E-R-T-S, and the U.S. Coast Guard.

16· ·Ecology staff are in the field today at the Columbia

17· ·Generating Station to gather information and assess the

18· ·situation.· Both incidents involved plant service water

19· ·that flows into the Circulating Water basin and then

20· ·into the Columbia River.

21· · · · · · EFSEC will continue to coordinate with Energy

22· ·Northwest and Ecology on these reported incidents.· And

23· ·as I said before, EN is here to update the Council on

24· ·both incidents and to answer your questions.· I can turn

25· ·it over to them unless the Council has any questions for



·1· ·me.

·2· · · · · · · · ·CHAIR DREW:· Any questions for Ms. Moon?

·3· · · · · · Mr. Mehinagic.

·4· · · · · · · · ·DENIS MEHINAGIC:· Good afternoon, Chair

·5· ·Drew, Council members, and staff.· For the record, this

·6· ·is Denis Mehinagic providing updates for Energy

·7· ·Northwest, Columbia Generating Station, and Washington

·8· ·Nuclear Projects 1 and 4.

·9· · · · · · So on September 10, 2024, at approximately 2:35

10· ·p.m., Energy Northwest became aware that no more than 30

11· ·gallons of silicone compressor fluid, Sullair 24KT, have

12· ·potentially leaked through the service air compressor

13· ·heat exchanger and entered the Plant Service Water

14· ·system, also known as TSW.

15· · · · · · The compressor was removed from service on

16· ·September 3rd due to excessive oil consumption.· Despite

17· ·the lowered oil level, the best information at the time

18· ·indicated no loss of oil to the TSW system.· The heat

19· ·exchanger remained out of service and was

20· ·pressure-tested on September 10th and confirmed to have

21· ·a leak that would allow the silicone compressor fluid to

22· ·migrate into TSW.

23· · · · · · TSW cools the service air compressor and other

24· ·non-radioactive loads in the facility before returning

25· ·to the Circulating Water basin where it's mixed with



·1· ·circulating water and may enter a system again such as

·2· ·TSW, Circulating Water, or Fire Protection water.

·3· ·Because TSW returns to the Circulating Water basin, it

·4· ·can be discharged to the Columbia River with circulating

·5· ·water blowdown.

·6· · · · · · An investigation is being conducted into what

·7· ·caused the failure of the heat exchanger.· All damaged

·8· ·heat exchanger equipment was replaced and tested before

·9· ·the air compressor was returned to service.· The

10· ·evaluation is being driven by the Energy Northwest

11· ·Corrective Action Program and is assigned Condition

12· ·Report number 461715.

13· · · · · · Energy Northwest completed a report within 24

14· ·hours pursuant to National Pollutant Discharge

15· ·Elimination System permit condition S3.F.2.b(i), which

16· ·involved notification via phone to EFSEC via the number

17· ·that was listed in the NPDES permit.· This notification

18· ·occurred at approximately 8:35 p.m. on September 10th.

19· ·Energy Northwest followed up by phone call with EFSEC

20· ·the morning of September 11, 2024, to ensure that the

21· ·notification was received.· The United States Coast

22· ·Guard, and the Washington State Energy Management

23· ·Division were also immediately notified of the event.

24· · · · · · Energy Northwest submitted a NPDES 5-day

25· ·noncompliance report to EFSEC on September 12, 2024.



·1· · · · · · Moving on to the second event that Amy Moon

·2· ·mentioned.· So on September 18, 2024, that is today,

·3· ·Columbia Generating Station determined that new

·4· ·repeating oil was likely released into a Plant Service

·5· ·Water system, or TSW, due to a failed heat exchanger on

·6· ·the reactor feed water turbine alpha.· Isolation of the

·7· ·heat exchanger from plant service water is still

·8· ·in-progress.· The Plant Service Water system returns

·9· ·water to the Circulating Water basin, which contains a

10· ·minimum of 300,000 gallons of water.

11· · · · · · The basin, the Circ Water basin, is connected

12· ·to the Columbia River via a blowdown line.· The blowdown

13· ·line was secured this morning at 7:39 a.m.· A visual

14· ·inspection of the basin did not identify any oil sheen

15· ·or film, but a sample downstream of the affected heat

16· ·exchanger revealed an oily sheen in the sample bottle.

17· ·It does not appear that the oil released poses a threat

18· ·to human health or the environment.· However, because

19· ·there could have been a discharge of an unknown quantity

20· ·of oil into the Columbia River, this matter was

21· ·immediately reported, under RCW 90.56.280, to the United

22· ·States Coast Guard and Washington State Department of

23· ·Ecology and to EFSEC.

24· · · · · · That is all I had for this matter.· And we are

25· ·planning on submitting a 5-day report which is tied to



·1· ·this event no later than close of business Monday.

·2· · · · · · · · ·CHAIR DREW:· So do you know if whatever is

·3· ·leaking has been identified and stopped?

·4· · · · · · · · ·DENIS MEHINAGIC:· So regarding the

·5· ·September 10th event, yes.· That heat exchanger was

·6· ·immediately removed from service and isolated, and then

·7· ·that heat exchanger was replaced with a new heat

·8· ·exchanger, and there are no further leaks, regarding the

·9· ·September 10th event.

10· · · · · · Regarding today's event, September 18th.· The

11· ·blowdown is isolated and continues to be isolated while

12· ·we develop a plan to swap out the damaged heat

13· ·exchanger, and we are still developing that plan now.

14· · · · · · · · ·CHAIR DREW:· Okay.

15· · · · · · · · ·DENIS MEHINAGIC:· But any discharge to the

16· ·Columbia River has ceased as of 7:39 a.m. this morning.

17· · · · · · · · ·CHAIR DREW:· And you will have more

18· ·information as you conduct your analysis, about how

19· ·long --

20· · · · · · · · ·DENIS MEHINAGIC:· Yep.

21· · · · · · · · ·CHAIR DREW:· -- that might have been

22· ·happening since you found --

23· · · · · · · · ·DENIS MEHINAGIC:· That is correct.

24· · · · · · · · ·CHAIR DREW:· -- the -- some oil further

25· ·downstream.· So.· Okay.



·1· · · · · · Are there --

·2· · · · · · · · ·DENIS MEHINAGIC:· That is correct.

·3· · · · · · · · ·CHAIR DREW:· -- any other questions from

·4· ·Council members?· Mr. Young?

·5· · · · · · · · ·LENNY YOUNG:· Yeah.· If I remember

·6· ·correctly, these are the second and third incidents of

·7· ·this type that have occurred within the last year.· Is

·8· ·there some type of a higher-level issue here in terms of

·9· ·age of the equipment or the inspection regime?· What can

10· ·we take away from three such equipment failures

11· ·occurring within a short period of time?

12· · · · · · · · ·DENIS MEHINAGIC:· Good question, and thank

13· ·you for that.

14· · · · · · We are evaluating, looking at the extended

15· ·conditions on all heat exchangers that are cooled by

16· ·TSW.· We had a meeting with our engineering department

17· ·yesterday to discuss an evaluation of that type.· So.

18· ·We will have more information to share, and we can share

19· ·that information at future Council meetings and with Amy

20· ·Moon.

21· · · · · · · · ·CHAIR DREW:· Go ahead, Mr. Young.

22· · · · · · · · ·LENNY YOUNG:· Yes.· Thank you for that.  I

23· ·appreciate it.· I guess where I am headed is, it would

24· ·be nice to see if the facility could get out in front of

25· ·these things if there is some type of a higher-level,



·1· ·overarching issue that needs to be confronted, instead

·2· ·of -- instead of having to continue to react to them on

·3· ·an as-failed basis.

·4· · · · · · · · ·DENIS MEHINAGIC:· Yep.· I understand.

·5· · · · · · · · ·LENNY YOUNG:· Thank you.

·6· · · · · · · · ·CHAIR DREW:· Any other questions?

·7· · · · · · Thank you very much, and we look forward to

·8· ·hearing ongoing reports.

·9· · · · · · Moving on to Goose Prairie Solar project

10· ·update, Mr. Crist.

11· · · · · · · · ·JACOB CRIST:· Thank you.· And good

12· ·afternoon, Chair Drew, EFSEC Council, and staff.· Jacob

13· ·Crist, Senior Project Manager, on behalf of Brookfield

14· ·Renewable U.S., providing the Goose Prairie Solar

15· ·project update for this period.

16· · · · · · So for construction status.· The project

17· ·remains ahead of contractual schedule still.· We have

18· ·achieved some of our latest milestones on time with --

19· ·as far as an initial sink date on August 26th, and then

20· ·an actual start of the BPA 90-day soak was on

21· ·August 26th.· Hot commissioning of all our inverters has

22· ·been completed since September 6th, including all punch

23· ·list items.· We are still targeting substantial

24· ·completion.· It's somewhat of a moving date right now.

25· ·It's scheduled to be around early October now instead of



·1· ·mid September.· We would -- we will be waiting on a

·2· ·utility sign-off, and then we can declare a commercial

·3· ·operation date.· That is expected on or around

·4· ·November 25th still.· We would like to pull that in some

·5· ·if we can.

·6· · · · · · I have mentioned, you know, all major scope

·7· ·items are complete, with modules, racking, trackers, and

·8· ·substation.· BPA curtailment checks are in progress, and

·9· ·the BPA coms checks are still in progress.· Capacity and

10· ·availability testing will follow shortly after those BPA

11· ·coms checks and curtailment checks.· And again, that's

12· ·scheduled for early October, as of now.

13· · · · · · We did commit the first grass cutting

14· ·contracted through our EPC.· That started in late August

15· ·for the vegetation and weed management plan and

16· ·scheduled to be completed by early October.

17· · · · · · Right now, for operations and maintenance, we

18· ·are still tracking the O&M site certificate deliverables

19· ·with Sarah and her team for whenever they are approved,

20· ·and declaring COD.

21· · · · · · For environmental compliance.· We had no

22· ·discharge on the site reported in August, and then the

23· ·frequent monitoring does occur.

24· · · · · · And then for two other items.· Next Council

25· ·meeting for October, I will introduce Nelson Jia, who



·1· ·will start providing operational updates in November.

·2· ·He would be Brookfield's asset manager for this site.

·3· · · · · · And then for public outreach -- or, really,

·4· ·visits to the site.· It sounds like we have some

·5· ·visits -- a visit coming up in mid October from public

·6· ·officials for the State of Washington.

·7· · · · · · Any questions?

·8· · · · · · · · ·CHAIR DREW:· Any questions for Mr. Crist?

·9· · · · · · Thank you.· Exciting time.· We are with you and

10· ·looking forward to the transition, and thanking you for

11· ·all the work and leadership you have had throughout this

12· ·time.

13· · · · · · · · ·JACOB CRIST:· Thank you.

14· · · · · · · · ·CHAIR DREW:· Moving on to High Top and

15· ·Ostrea.· We have a project update.· I will ask

16· ·Mr. Barnes.· And then the Construction Stormwater

17· ·General Permit, I am going to ask Ms. Ami Hafkemeyer.

18· · · · · · · · ·JOHN BARNES:· Thank you, Council, and

19· ·Chair Drew.· This is John Barnes on behalf of Sara

20· ·Randolph, site specialist for Ostrea.

21· · · · · · EFSEC staff are continuing to receive and

22· ·review documents being sent by the certificate holder

23· ·for preconstruction plans.· As a condition of the Site

24· ·Certificate Agreement, or SCA, Article IV(D)(1), the

25· ·facility is required to obtain a Construction Stormwater



·1· ·General Permit prior to construction.· EFSEC issues

·2· ·coverage under the Department of Ecology General Permit.

·3· · · · · · In your packet, you will find a letter of

·4· ·coverage that identifies the procedural differences

·5· ·between Ecology, General Permit, and EFSEC's

·6· ·authorities.· Some examples include enforcement

·7· ·authority, e-structure, and transfer of ownership.

·8· ·Ostrea Solar submitted their notice of intent, or NOI,

·9· ·for coverage under this permit on August 29th.

10· · · · · · · · ·CHAIR DREW:· Thank you.

11· · · · · · · · ·JOHN BARNES:· Thank you.

12· · · · · · · · ·CHAIR DREW:· Ms. Hafkemeyer.

13· · · · · · · · ·AMI HAFKEMEYER:· Thank you.

14· · · · · · Good afternoon, Chair Drew, and Council.· And

15· ·thank you, Mr. Barnes, for the introduction.

16· · · · · · As he stated, EFSEC adopts the Ecology

17· ·Construction Stormwater General Permit.· However, there

18· ·are some differences, as identified, in the Ecology

19· ·process and the EFSEC process primarily to do with

20· ·appeals, reporting, fees, et cetera.· And so staff would

21· ·like to request that the Council put out for a 30-day

22· ·comment this letter of coverage to then be issued along

23· ·with the Construction Stormwater General Permit to the

24· ·facility.

25· · · · · · · · ·CHAIR DREW:· Okay.· So once we -- talk to



·1· ·me about the process after that comment period, please.

·2· · · · · · · · ·AMI HAFKEMEYER:· Of course.· So in the

·3· ·development of the Construction Stormwater General

·4· ·Permit, Ecology issued that document out for public

·5· ·comment.· So that public comment is -- for that document

·6· ·is already complete, so EFSEC requests public comment

·7· ·for our letter of coverage specifically.

·8· · · · · · Once any comments are received, if any changes

·9· ·are indicated that should be made, if they are

10· ·substantive, EFSEC may request that we go out again for

11· ·public comment if it's, you know, correcting of minor

12· ·typos or something like that.· EFSEC would request that

13· ·the Council issue the permit.

14· · · · · · · · ·CHAIR DREW:· Okay.· So we will receive the

15· ·public comments in the next 30 days.· And after that, it

16· ·would come back to the Council with any of those

17· ·comments.

18· · · · · · · · ·AMI HAFKEMEYER:· Correct.

19· · · · · · · · ·CHAIR DREW:· Okay.· Thank you.

20· · · · · · Any questions from Council members?

21· · · · · · Is there a motion from Council members to put

22· ·the letter of coverage for Cyprus Creek Renewables on

23· ·behalf of Ostrea Solar Facility out for public comment?

24· · · · · · · · ·LENNY YOUNG:· Lenny Young.· So moved.

25· · · · · · · · ·CHAIR DREW:· Thank you.



·1· · · · · · Second?

·2· · · · · · · · ·STACEY BREWSTER:· Stacy Brewster.· Second.

·3· · · · · · · · ·CHAIR DREW:· Any discussion or questions?

·4· · · · · · Hearing none, all those in favor of putting

·5· ·this coverage letter out for public comment for 30 days,

·6· ·please say "aye."

·7· · · · · · · · ·MULTIPLE SPEAKERS:· Aye.

·8· · · · · · · · ·CHAIR DREW:· Opposed?

·9· · · · · · Motion carries.· Thank you.

10· · · · · · Horse Heaven Wind Farm, Ms. Moon.

11· · · · · · · · ·AMY MOON:· Good afternoon, Council Chair

12· ·Drew and EFSEC members.· For the record, this is Amy

13· ·Moon reporting on the Horse Heaven Wind Project.

14· · · · · · As directed by the Council on September 13th of

15· ·2024, EFSEC staff applied the Council's changes to the

16· ·draft Site Certification Agreement, or SCA, and the

17· ·appendix to mitigation measures.· EFSEC staff submitted

18· ·the final Site Certification Agreement, including those

19· ·mitigation measures and the public comments received, to

20· ·the governor on September 17th.· Pursuant to Revised

21· ·Code of Washington 80.50.100(1)(b), the governor shall

22· ·either approve the application and execute the

23· ·certification agreement or reject the application.· If

24· ·the governor rejects the application, that rejection

25· ·shall be the final decision on the Scout Clean Energy



·1· ·February 8, 2021, application for site certification.

·2· · · · · · Does the Council have any questions?

·3· · · · · · · · ·CHAIR DREW:· Are there any questions from

·4· ·Council members?

·5· · · · · · Thank you, Ms. Moon.

·6· · · · · · · · ·AMY MOON:· You're welcome.

·7· · · · · · · · ·CHAIR DREW:· Wautoma Solar project update,

·8· ·Mr. Caputo.

·9· · · · · · · · ·LANCE CAPUTO:· Thank you, Chair Drew, and

10· ·Council members.· The adjudicative proceeding for the

11· ·Wautoma Solar Energy Project is scheduled for Wednesday,

12· ·September 25, beginning at 9:00 a.m.· All documents for

13· ·Council review are available in the Council's

14· ·SharePoint.· Staff can provide assistance in locating

15· ·these if any of you are having difficulties.· The

16· ·subsequent Public Hearing -- excuse me.· The subsequent

17· ·Public Comment Hearing Session is scheduled for Thursday

18· ·evening, October 3rd, beginning at 5:00 p.m.· Thank you.

19· · · · · · May I answer any questions?

20· · · · · · · · ·CHAIR DREW:· So again for Council members.

21· ·There are pre-filed documents for the hearing already on

22· ·our SharePoint site.

23· · · · · · · · ·LANCE CAPUTO:· That is correct.

24· · · · · · · · ·CHAIR DREW:· So if you need any assistance

25· ·finding those, perhaps staff can send a link to the



·1· ·Wautoma Council members just to kind of have that right

·2· ·in front of us because, you know, it's helpful to review

·3· ·all of that ahead-of-time before, and we all will be

·4· ·doing that before the adjudication.

·5· · · · · · · · ·LANCE CAPUTO:· We will do that for you.

·6· · · · · · · · ·CHAIR DREW:· Thank you.

·7· · · · · · I also want to comment because, those of you

·8· ·who are seeing our report, we have new editions, which I

·9· ·am very happy to see, which is that it's identifying

10· ·where in our site certification process each project is

11· ·and the location of the project.· So.· Thank you, staff,

12· ·for adding those to our information sheets.

13· · · · · · So for the public.· You can also look those up

14· ·and follow them on a month-to-month basis.

15· · · · · · Any questions from Council members about

16· ·Wautoma or the adjudicative process coming up?

17· · · · · · Okay.· Moving on to the Hop Hill Solar project

18· ·update, Mr. Barnes.

19· · · · · · · · ·JOHN BARNES:· Thank you, Chair Drew, and

20· ·Council members.· For the record, this is John Barnes,

21· ·EFSEC staff for the Hop Hill application.

22· · · · · · We are continuing with the applicant to

23· ·complete studies and reports needed to make a SEPA

24· ·determination.· We continue to coordinate and review the

25· ·application with our contractor, contracted agencies,



·1· ·and tribal governments.· Are there any questions?

·2· · · · · · · · ·CHAIR DREW:· Any questions from Council

·3· ·members?

·4· · · · · · Okay.· Carriger Solar project update,

·5· ·Ms. Snarski.

·6· · · · · · · · ·JOANNE SNARSKI:· Thank you, Chair Drew,

·7· ·and Council members.· For the record, this is Joanne

·8· ·Snarski, the siting specialist for Carriger Solar.

·9· · · · · · In August, we received an updated amendment to

10· ·the Wetland and Waterbodies Delineation Report

11· ·previously submitted in 2023.· This amendment was in

12· ·response to comments received from Ecology both in

13· ·writing and during a field visit conducted in -- last

14· ·spring.· We anticipate final comments from Ecology in

15· ·mid October on that report.

16· · · · · · May I answer any questions?

17· · · · · · · · ·CHAIR DREW:· Are there any questions for

18· ·Ms. Snarski?

19· · · · · · Thank you.

20· · · · · · Wallula Gap project update, Mr. Barnes.

21· · · · · · · · ·JOHN BARNES:· Thank you, Chair Drew, and

22· ·Council members.· For the record, this is John Barnes,

23· ·EFSEC staff for the Wallula Gap application.

24· · · · · · EFSEC received on August 29th responses from

25· ·OneEnergy regarding a request for additional



·1· ·information.· The request is the result of an

·2· ·application review which discovered additional

·3· ·information was determined to be needed to reach a SEPA

·4· ·determination for this application.· Staff are

·5· ·continuing to review the application with our

·6· ·contractor, contracted agencies, and tribal governments.

·7· ·Are there any questions?

·8· · · · · · · · ·CHAIR DREW:· Any questions?

·9· · · · · · Thank you.

10· · · · · · Goldeneye BESS.· Mr. Ahmed.

11· · · · · · · · ·ZIA AHMED:· Thank you, Chair Drew, and

12· ·Council member.· For the record, this is Zia Ahmed,

13· ·Siting Specialist for the Goldeneye Battery Energy

14· ·Storage Projects.

15· · · · · · Staff from other agencies are continuing to

16· ·review the ASC and work collaborate with EFSEC.· That's

17· ·all the updates I have for now.· Let me know if you have

18· ·any questions.

19· · · · · · · · ·CHAIR DREW:· Any questions for Mr. Ahmed?

20· · · · · · Thank you.

21· · · · · · That concludes the agenda for today.· Thank

22· ·you, all.· Meeting is adjourned.

23· · · · · · · · · · · · · ·(Adjourned at 2:05 p.m.)
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 1                 CHAIR DREW:  Okay.  Good afternoon.

 2   Kathleen Drew, Chair of the Energy Facility Site

 3   Evaluation Council, bringing our monthly meeting to

 4   order.

 5            Ms. Grantham, will you call the role.

 6                 ANDREA GRANTHAM:  Certainly, Chair Drew.

 7            Department of Commerce?

 8                 ELIZABETH OSBORNE:  Elizabeth Osborne.

 9   Present.

10                 ANDREA GRANTHAM:  Department of Ecology?

11                 ELI LEVITT:  Eli Levitt.  Present.

12                 ANDREA GRANTHAM:  Department of Fish and

13   Wildlife?

14                 MIKE LIVINGSTON:  Mike Livingston.

15   Present.

16                 ANDREA GRANTHAM:  Department of Natural

17   Resources?

18                 LENNY YOUNG:  Lenny Young.  Present.

19                 ANDREA GRANTHAM:  Utilities and

20   Transportation Commission?

21                 STACY BREWSTER:  Stacy Brewster.  Present.

22                 ANDREA GRANTHAM:  For Local Government and

23   Optional State Agencies.  For the Horse Heaven Project,

24   for Benton County, do we have Ed Brost?

25            For the Badger Mountain Project, for Douglas
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 1   County?

 2            For the Wautoma Solar Project, for Benton

 3   County, Dave Sharp?

 4            Washington State Department of Transportation,

 5   Paul Gonseth?

 6                 PAUL GONSETH:  Paul Gonseth.  Present.

 7                 ANDREA GRANTHAM:  Hop Hill Solar Project,

 8   for Benton County, Paul Krupin?

 9            Carriger Solar Project, for Klickitat County,

10   Matt Chiles?

11                 MATT CHILES:  Matt Chiles.  Present.

12                 ANDREA GRANTHAM:  For the Wallula Gap

13   Project, for Benton County, Adam Fyall?

14            And for Goldeneye BESS, for Skagit County,

15   Robby Eckroth?

16                 ROBBY ECKROTH:  Robby Eckroth.  Present.

17                 ANDREA GRANTHAM:  Assistant Attorney

18   Generals.  Jon Thompson?

19            And Zack Packer?

20                 ZACK PACKER:  Present.

21                 ANDREA GRANTHAM:  Administrative Law

22   Judges.  Adam Torem?

23                 JUDGE TOREM:  Judge Torem.  I am present.

24                 ANDREA GRANTHAM:  Laura Bradley?

25            Dan Gerard?
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 1            And Travis Dupree?

 2            And I will call Council staff who may be

 3   anticipated to speak today.  Sonia Bumpus?

 4                 SONIA BUMPUS:  Present.

 5                 ANDREA GRANTHAM:  Ami Hafkemeyer?

 6                 AMI HAFKEMEYER:  Present.

 7                 ANDREA GRANTHAM:  Amy Moon?

 8                 AMY MOON:  Amy Moon.  Present.

 9                 ANDREA GRANTHAM:  Sara Randolph?

10            Sean Greene?

11                 SEAN GREENE:  Sean Greene.  Present.

12                 ANDREA GRANTHAM:  Lance Caputo?

13                 LANCE CAPUTO:  Present.

14                 ANDREA GRANTHAM:  Lance Caputo is present

15   in the room.

16            John Barnes?

17                 JOHN BARNES:  Present.

18                 ANDREA GRANTHAM:  Joanne Snarski?

19                 JOANNE SNARSKI:  Present.

20                 ANDREA GRANTHAM:  And Zia Ahmed?

21                 ZIA AHMED:  Zia Ahmed.  Present.

22                 ANDREA GRANTHAM:  Operational Updates.

23   For Kittitas Valley Wind?

24                 JARRED CASEDAY:  Jarred Caseday.  Present.

25                 ANDREA GRANTHAM:  Wild Horse Wind Power
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 1   Project?

 2                 JENNIFER GALBRAITH:  Jennifer Galbraith.

 3   Present.

 4                 ANDREA GRANTHAM:  Grays Harbor Energy

 5   Center?

 6            Chehalis Generation Facility?

 7                 JEREMY SMITH:  Jeremy Smith.  Present.

 8                 ANDREA GRANTHAM:  Columbia Generating

 9   Station?

10                 DENIS MEHINAGIC:  Denis Mehinagic.

11   Present.

12                 ANDREA GRANTHAM:  Columbia Solar?

13                 THOMAS CUSHING:  Thomas Cushing.  Present.

14                 ANDREA GRANTHAM:  And Goose Prairie Solar?

15                 JACOB CRIST:  Jacob Crist.  Present.

16                 ANDREA GRANTHAM:  And do we have someone

17   present for the Counsel For the Environment?

18                 SARAH REYNEVELD:  Yes.  Sarah Reyneveld

19   and Yuriy Korol are present.

20                 ANDREA GRANTHAM:  Thank you.

21            Chair, there is a quorum for all counsels.

22                 CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.

23            Council members, you have in front of you the

24   agenda, proposed agenda for this meeting.  Is there a

25   motion to adopt the proposed agenda?
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 1                 LENNY YOUNG:  Lenny Young.  So moved.

 2                 STACY BREWSTER:  Stacy Brewster.  Second.

 3                 CHAIR DREW:  All those in favor, say

 4   "aye."

 5                 MULTIPLE SPEAKERS:  Aye.

 6                 CHAIR DREW:  Opposed?

 7            It is adopted.

 8            Moving on to the meeting minutes.  We have

 9   three sets of meeting minutes for today.  The first we

10   will take up is the August 13, 2024, Goldeneye BESS

11   informational meeting and land-use hearing minutes.  Is

12   there a motion to approve the minutes?

13                 STACY BREWSTER:  Stacy Brewster.  So

14   moved.

15                 CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.

16            Second?

17                 ELI LEVITT:  Eli Levitt.  Second.

18                 CHAIR DREW:  Thanks.

19            Any corrections or edits from Council members?

20   I don't have any.

21            Hearing none, all those in favor of approving

22   the minutes from the Goldeneye BESS August 13th meeting,

23   please say "aye."

24                 MULTIPLE SPEAKERS:  Aye.

25                 CHAIR DREW:  Opposed?
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 1            Motion carries.

 2            Moving on to the August 21st monthly Council

 3   meeting minutes.  Is there a motion to approve those

 4   minutes?

 5                 ELIZABETH OSBORNE:  Elizabeth Osborne.  So

 6   moved.

 7                 MIKE LIVINGSTON:  Mike Livingston --

 8                 CHAIR DREW:  Elizabeth Osborne --

 9                 MIKE LIVINGSTON:  Mike Livingston.

10   Second.

11                 CHAIR DREW:  Thank you, thank you, thank

12   you.

13            I have couple of changes/corrections.  I

14   believe, on page 7, on line 1.  Let me see where that

15   is.  If I can look more closely.  Before quoting the

16   governor, I think I should -- there should be a word in

17   their quote.  Can you see where that is, Ms. Grantham?

18                 ANDREA GRANTHAM:  Is this for the Horse

19   Heaven minutes or for the August 21st monthly --

20                 CHAIR DREW:  Oh.

21                 ANDREA GRANTHAM:  -- meeting?

22                 CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.  That's why --

23                 ANDREA GRANTHAM:  Of course.

24                 CHAIR DREW:  -- I didn't find it.  Yes.

25   For the August monthly meeting, I have no corrections.
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 1            Anyone else?

 2            Hearing none, all those in favor of approving

 3   the August 21, 2024, monthly Council meeting minutes,

 4   say "aye."

 5                 MULTIPLE SPEAKERS:  Aye.

 6                 CHAIR DREW:  Opposed?

 7            Those are approved.

 8            Moving on to the August 29th Horse Heaven

 9   special meeting minutes.  A motion to approve the

10   minutes?

11                 STACY BREWSTER:  Stacy Brewster.  So

12   moved.

13                 ELI LEVITT:  Eli Levitt.  Second.

14                 CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.

15            Now, page 7, line 1.  Let me see where this is.

16   So, really, it's at the beginning of line 1, quote.  It

17   should say on line 25, "I know that he also stated that,

18   quote, the record is robust."  So that's what should go

19   in there.

20            Then on page 19, line 14, I have an answer to a

21   question from Mr. Livingston, "Well, let me ask one more

22   question.  I'm sorry."  And I say, "No."  I believe I

23   don't ever say that to Council members who have

24   questions.  So even though we don't remember exactly,

25   can we -- without objection, I would say, "No problem."
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 1   Add the word "problem" in there.  And those are all the

 2   corrections that I have.  Anyone else?

 3            All those in favor with -- of those --

 4   approving those minutes as amended, please say "aye."

 5                 MULTIPLE SPEAKERS:  Aye.

 6                 CHAIR DREW:  Opposed?

 7            Motion carries.  Those minutes are amended.

 8   Thank you so much to everybody.  And we will move on to

 9   Operational Updates.

10            Kittitas Valley Wind Project, Mr. Caseday.

11                 MR. CASEDAY:  Good afternoon, Chair Drew,

12   EFSEC Council, and staff.  This is Jarred Caseday with

13   EDP Renewables for the Kittitas Valley Wind Power

14   Project.  We have nothing nonroutine to report for the

15   period.

16                 CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.

17                 JARRED CASEDAY:  Thank you.

18                 CHAIR DREW:  Wild Horse Wind Power

19   Project, Ms. Galbraith.

20                 JENNIFER GALBRAITH:  Yes.  Thank you,

21   Chair Drew, Council members, and staff.  This is

22   Jennifer Galbraith with Puget Sound Energy representing

23   the Wild Horse Wind Facility, and I also have nothing

24   nonroutine to report for the period.

25                 CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.
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 1            Chehalis Generation Facility, Mr. Smith.

 2                 JEREMY SMITH:  Good afternoon, Chair Drew,

 3   EFSEC Council, and staff.  Jeremy Smith, the operations

 4   manager for the Chehalis Generation Facility, and I have

 5   nothing nonroutine to report for the month of August.

 6                 CHAIR DREW:  Great.

 7            Grays Harbor Energy Center.  I didn't hear

 8   Mr. Sherin.  If he is not there; Mr. Barnes?

 9                 JOHN BARNES:  Thank you, Chair Drew, and

10   Council members.  For the record, this is John Barnes on

11   behalf of Sara Randolph, site specialist for Grays

12   Harbor facility.  Update is provided in your packet.

13   There are no other updates to report at this time.

14                 CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.

15                 JOHN BARNES:  Thank you.

16                 CHAIR DREW:  Columbia Solar, Mr. Cushing.

17                 THOMAS CUSHING:  Good afternoon, Chair

18   Drew, Council members, EFSEC staff.  This is Thomas

19   Cushing speaking on behalf of Columbia Solar.  There are

20   no nonroutine updates to report.

21                 CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.

22            Columbia Generating Station.  Before I go to

23   the facility, itself, I'd like Ms. Amy Moon to give us

24   an update.

25                 AMY MOON:  Thank you, Council Chair Drew.
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 1            So good afternoon, EFSEC Council members and

 2   Council Chair Drew.  For the record, this is Amy Moon

 3   reporting on the Columbia Generating Station.  And I

 4   want to give a brief introduction to the Council before

 5   Energy Northwest, or EN, provides their Council update.

 6            Energy Northwest is here today to report on two

 7   National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System, or the

 8   NPDES, permit noncompliance issues.

 9            EFSEC received the required notifications,

10   including a 5-day report for an incident reported

11   September 10th of 2024 involving a release to the

12   Columbia River.  A newly emergent incident was also

13   reported this morning just after 7:30 a.m. to EFSEC, the

14   statewide Environmental Report Tracking System, which is

15   known as ERTS, E-R-T-S, and the U.S. Coast Guard.

16   Ecology staff are in the field today at the Columbia

17   Generating Station to gather information and assess the

18   situation.  Both incidents involved plant service water

19   that flows into the Circulating Water basin and then

20   into the Columbia River.

21            EFSEC will continue to coordinate with Energy

22   Northwest and Ecology on these reported incidents.  And

23   as I said before, EN is here to update the Council on

24   both incidents and to answer your questions.  I can turn

25   it over to them unless the Council has any questions for
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 1   me.

 2                 CHAIR DREW:  Any questions for Ms. Moon?

 3            Mr. Mehinagic.

 4                 DENIS MEHINAGIC:  Good afternoon, Chair

 5   Drew, Council members, and staff.  For the record, this

 6   is Denis Mehinagic providing updates for Energy

 7   Northwest, Columbia Generating Station, and Washington

 8   Nuclear Projects 1 and 4.

 9            So on September 10, 2024, at approximately 2:35

10   p.m., Energy Northwest became aware that no more than 30

11   gallons of silicone compressor fluid, Sullair 24KT, have

12   potentially leaked through the service air compressor

13   heat exchanger and entered the Plant Service Water

14   system, also known as TSW.

15            The compressor was removed from service on

16   September 3rd due to excessive oil consumption.  Despite

17   the lowered oil level, the best information at the time

18   indicated no loss of oil to the TSW system.  The heat

19   exchanger remained out of service and was

20   pressure-tested on September 10th and confirmed to have

21   a leak that would allow the silicone compressor fluid to

22   migrate into TSW.

23            TSW cools the service air compressor and other

24   non-radioactive loads in the facility before returning

25   to the Circulating Water basin where it's mixed with
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 1   circulating water and may enter a system again such as

 2   TSW, Circulating Water, or Fire Protection water.

 3   Because TSW returns to the Circulating Water basin, it

 4   can be discharged to the Columbia River with circulating

 5   water blowdown.

 6            An investigation is being conducted into what

 7   caused the failure of the heat exchanger.  All damaged

 8   heat exchanger equipment was replaced and tested before

 9   the air compressor was returned to service.  The

10   evaluation is being driven by the Energy Northwest

11   Corrective Action Program and is assigned Condition

12   Report number 461715.

13            Energy Northwest completed a report within 24

14   hours pursuant to National Pollutant Discharge

15   Elimination System permit condition S3.F.2.b(i), which

16   involved notification via phone to EFSEC via the number

17   that was listed in the NPDES permit.  This notification

18   occurred at approximately 8:35 p.m. on September 10th.

19   Energy Northwest followed up by phone call with EFSEC

20   the morning of September 11, 2024, to ensure that the

21   notification was received.  The United States Coast

22   Guard, and the Washington State Energy Management

23   Division were also immediately notified of the event.

24            Energy Northwest submitted a NPDES 5-day

25   noncompliance report to EFSEC on September 12, 2024.
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 1            Moving on to the second event that Amy Moon

 2   mentioned.  So on September 18, 2024, that is today,

 3   Columbia Generating Station determined that new

 4   repeating oil was likely released into a Plant Service

 5   Water system, or TSW, due to a failed heat exchanger on

 6   the reactor feed water turbine alpha.  Isolation of the

 7   heat exchanger from plant service water is still

 8   in-progress.  The Plant Service Water system returns

 9   water to the Circulating Water basin, which contains a

10   minimum of 300,000 gallons of water.

11            The basin, the Circ Water basin, is connected

12   to the Columbia River via a blowdown line.  The blowdown

13   line was secured this morning at 7:39 a.m.  A visual

14   inspection of the basin did not identify any oil sheen

15   or film, but a sample downstream of the affected heat

16   exchanger revealed an oily sheen in the sample bottle.

17   It does not appear that the oil released poses a threat

18   to human health or the environment.  However, because

19   there could have been a discharge of an unknown quantity

20   of oil into the Columbia River, this matter was

21   immediately reported, under RCW 90.56.280, to the United

22   States Coast Guard and Washington State Department of

23   Ecology and to EFSEC.

24            That is all I had for this matter.  And we are

25   planning on submitting a 5-day report which is tied to
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 1   this event no later than close of business Monday.

 2                 CHAIR DREW:  So do you know if whatever is

 3   leaking has been identified and stopped?

 4                 DENIS MEHINAGIC:  So regarding the

 5   September 10th event, yes.  That heat exchanger was

 6   immediately removed from service and isolated, and then

 7   that heat exchanger was replaced with a new heat

 8   exchanger, and there are no further leaks, regarding the

 9   September 10th event.

10            Regarding today's event, September 18th.  The

11   blowdown is isolated and continues to be isolated while

12   we develop a plan to swap out the damaged heat

13   exchanger, and we are still developing that plan now.

14                 CHAIR DREW:  Okay.

15                 DENIS MEHINAGIC:  But any discharge to the

16   Columbia River has ceased as of 7:39 a.m. this morning.

17                 CHAIR DREW:  And you will have more

18   information as you conduct your analysis, about how

19   long --

20                 DENIS MEHINAGIC:  Yep.

21                 CHAIR DREW:  -- that might have been

22   happening since you found --

23                 DENIS MEHINAGIC:  That is correct.

24                 CHAIR DREW:  -- the -- some oil further

25   downstream.  So.  Okay.
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 1            Are there --

 2                 DENIS MEHINAGIC:  That is correct.

 3                 CHAIR DREW:  -- any other questions from

 4   Council members?  Mr. Young?

 5                 LENNY YOUNG:  Yeah.  If I remember

 6   correctly, these are the second and third incidents of

 7   this type that have occurred within the last year.  Is

 8   there some type of a higher-level issue here in terms of

 9   age of the equipment or the inspection regime?  What can

10   we take away from three such equipment failures

11   occurring within a short period of time?

12                 DENIS MEHINAGIC:  Good question, and thank

13   you for that.

14            We are evaluating, looking at the extended

15   conditions on all heat exchangers that are cooled by

16   TSW.  We had a meeting with our engineering department

17   yesterday to discuss an evaluation of that type.  So.

18   We will have more information to share, and we can share

19   that information at future Council meetings and with Amy

20   Moon.

21                 CHAIR DREW:  Go ahead, Mr. Young.

22                 LENNY YOUNG:  Yes.  Thank you for that.  I

23   appreciate it.  I guess where I am headed is, it would

24   be nice to see if the facility could get out in front of

25   these things if there is some type of a higher-level,
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 1   overarching issue that needs to be confronted, instead

 2   of -- instead of having to continue to react to them on

 3   an as-failed basis.

 4                 DENIS MEHINAGIC:  Yep.  I understand.

 5                 LENNY YOUNG:  Thank you.

 6                 CHAIR DREW:  Any other questions?

 7            Thank you very much, and we look forward to

 8   hearing ongoing reports.

 9            Moving on to Goose Prairie Solar project

10   update, Mr. Crist.

11                 JACOB CRIST:  Thank you.  And good

12   afternoon, Chair Drew, EFSEC Council, and staff.  Jacob

13   Crist, Senior Project Manager, on behalf of Brookfield

14   Renewable U.S., providing the Goose Prairie Solar

15   project update for this period.

16            So for construction status.  The project

17   remains ahead of contractual schedule still.  We have

18   achieved some of our latest milestones on time with --

19   as far as an initial sink date on August 26th, and then

20   an actual start of the BPA 90-day soak was on

21   August 26th.  Hot commissioning of all our inverters has

22   been completed since September 6th, including all punch

23   list items.  We are still targeting substantial

24   completion.  It's somewhat of a moving date right now.

25   It's scheduled to be around early October now instead of
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 1   mid September.  We would -- we will be waiting on a

 2   utility sign-off, and then we can declare a commercial

 3   operation date.  That is expected on or around

 4   November 25th still.  We would like to pull that in some

 5   if we can.

 6            I have mentioned, you know, all major scope

 7   items are complete, with modules, racking, trackers, and

 8   substation.  BPA curtailment checks are in progress, and

 9   the BPA coms checks are still in progress.  Capacity and

10   availability testing will follow shortly after those BPA

11   coms checks and curtailment checks.  And again, that's

12   scheduled for early October, as of now.

13            We did commit the first grass cutting

14   contracted through our EPC.  That started in late August

15   for the vegetation and weed management plan and

16   scheduled to be completed by early October.

17            Right now, for operations and maintenance, we

18   are still tracking the O&M site certificate deliverables

19   with Sarah and her team for whenever they are approved,

20   and declaring COD.

21            For environmental compliance.  We had no

22   discharge on the site reported in August, and then the

23   frequent monitoring does occur.

24            And then for two other items.  Next Council

25   meeting for October, I will introduce Nelson Jia, who
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 1   will start providing operational updates in November.

 2   He would be Brookfield's asset manager for this site.

 3            And then for public outreach -- or, really,

 4   visits to the site.  It sounds like we have some

 5   visits -- a visit coming up in mid October from public

 6   officials for the State of Washington.

 7            Any questions?

 8                 CHAIR DREW:  Any questions for Mr. Crist?

 9            Thank you.  Exciting time.  We are with you and

10   looking forward to the transition, and thanking you for

11   all the work and leadership you have had throughout this

12   time.

13                 JACOB CRIST:  Thank you.

14                 CHAIR DREW:  Moving on to High Top and

15   Ostrea.  We have a project update.  I will ask

16   Mr. Barnes.  And then the Construction Stormwater

17   General Permit, I am going to ask Ms. Ami Hafkemeyer.

18                 JOHN BARNES:  Thank you, Council, and

19   Chair Drew.  This is John Barnes on behalf of Sara

20   Randolph, site specialist for Ostrea.

21            EFSEC staff are continuing to receive and

22   review documents being sent by the certificate holder

23   for preconstruction plans.  As a condition of the Site

24   Certificate Agreement, or SCA, Article IV(D)(1), the

25   facility is required to obtain a Construction Stormwater
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 1   General Permit prior to construction.  EFSEC issues

 2   coverage under the Department of Ecology General Permit.

 3            In your packet, you will find a letter of

 4   coverage that identifies the procedural differences

 5   between Ecology, General Permit, and EFSEC's

 6   authorities.  Some examples include enforcement

 7   authority, e-structure, and transfer of ownership.

 8   Ostrea Solar submitted their notice of intent, or NOI,

 9   for coverage under this permit on August 29th.

10                 CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.

11                 JOHN BARNES:  Thank you.

12                 CHAIR DREW:  Ms. Hafkemeyer.

13                 AMI HAFKEMEYER:  Thank you.

14            Good afternoon, Chair Drew, and Council.  And

15   thank you, Mr. Barnes, for the introduction.

16            As he stated, EFSEC adopts the Ecology

17   Construction Stormwater General Permit.  However, there

18   are some differences, as identified, in the Ecology

19   process and the EFSEC process primarily to do with

20   appeals, reporting, fees, et cetera.  And so staff would

21   like to request that the Council put out for a 30-day

22   comment this letter of coverage to then be issued along

23   with the Construction Stormwater General Permit to the

24   facility.

25                 CHAIR DREW:  Okay.  So once we -- talk to
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 1   me about the process after that comment period, please.

 2                 AMI HAFKEMEYER:  Of course.  So in the

 3   development of the Construction Stormwater General

 4   Permit, Ecology issued that document out for public

 5   comment.  So that public comment is -- for that document

 6   is already complete, so EFSEC requests public comment

 7   for our letter of coverage specifically.

 8            Once any comments are received, if any changes

 9   are indicated that should be made, if they are

10   substantive, EFSEC may request that we go out again for

11   public comment if it's, you know, correcting of minor

12   typos or something like that.  EFSEC would request that

13   the Council issue the permit.

14                 CHAIR DREW:  Okay.  So we will receive the

15   public comments in the next 30 days.  And after that, it

16   would come back to the Council with any of those

17   comments.

18                 AMI HAFKEMEYER:  Correct.

19                 CHAIR DREW:  Okay.  Thank you.

20            Any questions from Council members?

21            Is there a motion from Council members to put

22   the letter of coverage for Cyprus Creek Renewables on

23   behalf of Ostrea Solar Facility out for public comment?

24                 LENNY YOUNG:  Lenny Young.  So moved.

25                 CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.

0025

 1            Second?

 2                 STACEY BREWSTER:  Stacy Brewster.  Second.

 3                 CHAIR DREW:  Any discussion or questions?

 4            Hearing none, all those in favor of putting

 5   this coverage letter out for public comment for 30 days,

 6   please say "aye."

 7                 MULTIPLE SPEAKERS:  Aye.

 8                 CHAIR DREW:  Opposed?

 9            Motion carries.  Thank you.

10            Horse Heaven Wind Farm, Ms. Moon.

11                 AMY MOON:  Good afternoon, Council Chair

12   Drew and EFSEC members.  For the record, this is Amy

13   Moon reporting on the Horse Heaven Wind Project.

14            As directed by the Council on September 13th of

15   2024, EFSEC staff applied the Council's changes to the

16   draft Site Certification Agreement, or SCA, and the

17   appendix to mitigation measures.  EFSEC staff submitted

18   the final Site Certification Agreement, including those

19   mitigation measures and the public comments received, to

20   the governor on September 17th.  Pursuant to Revised

21   Code of Washington 80.50.100(1)(b), the governor shall

22   either approve the application and execute the

23   certification agreement or reject the application.  If

24   the governor rejects the application, that rejection

25   shall be the final decision on the Scout Clean Energy
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 1   February 8, 2021, application for site certification.

 2            Does the Council have any questions?

 3                 CHAIR DREW:  Are there any questions from

 4   Council members?

 5            Thank you, Ms. Moon.

 6                 AMY MOON:  You're welcome.

 7                 CHAIR DREW:  Wautoma Solar project update,

 8   Mr. Caputo.

 9                 LANCE CAPUTO:  Thank you, Chair Drew, and

10   Council members.  The adjudicative proceeding for the

11   Wautoma Solar Energy Project is scheduled for Wednesday,

12   September 25, beginning at 9:00 a.m.  All documents for

13   Council review are available in the Council's

14   SharePoint.  Staff can provide assistance in locating

15   these if any of you are having difficulties.  The

16   subsequent Public Hearing -- excuse me.  The subsequent

17   Public Comment Hearing Session is scheduled for Thursday

18   evening, October 3rd, beginning at 5:00 p.m.  Thank you.

19            May I answer any questions?

20                 CHAIR DREW:  So again for Council members.

21   There are pre-filed documents for the hearing already on

22   our SharePoint site.

23                 LANCE CAPUTO:  That is correct.

24                 CHAIR DREW:  So if you need any assistance

25   finding those, perhaps staff can send a link to the
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 1   Wautoma Council members just to kind of have that right

 2   in front of us because, you know, it's helpful to review

 3   all of that ahead-of-time before, and we all will be

 4   doing that before the adjudication.

 5                 LANCE CAPUTO:  We will do that for you.

 6                 CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.

 7            I also want to comment because, those of you

 8   who are seeing our report, we have new editions, which I

 9   am very happy to see, which is that it's identifying

10   where in our site certification process each project is

11   and the location of the project.  So.  Thank you, staff,

12   for adding those to our information sheets.

13            So for the public.  You can also look those up

14   and follow them on a month-to-month basis.

15            Any questions from Council members about

16   Wautoma or the adjudicative process coming up?

17            Okay.  Moving on to the Hop Hill Solar project

18   update, Mr. Barnes.

19                 JOHN BARNES:  Thank you, Chair Drew, and

20   Council members.  For the record, this is John Barnes,

21   EFSEC staff for the Hop Hill application.

22            We are continuing with the applicant to

23   complete studies and reports needed to make a SEPA

24   determination.  We continue to coordinate and review the

25   application with our contractor, contracted agencies,
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 1   and tribal governments.  Are there any questions?

 2                 CHAIR DREW:  Any questions from Council

 3   members?

 4            Okay.  Carriger Solar project update,

 5   Ms. Snarski.

 6                 JOANNE SNARSKI:  Thank you, Chair Drew,

 7   and Council members.  For the record, this is Joanne

 8   Snarski, the siting specialist for Carriger Solar.

 9            In August, we received an updated amendment to

10   the Wetland and Waterbodies Delineation Report

11   previously submitted in 2023.  This amendment was in

12   response to comments received from Ecology both in

13   writing and during a field visit conducted in -- last

14   spring.  We anticipate final comments from Ecology in

15   mid October on that report.

16            May I answer any questions?

17                 CHAIR DREW:  Are there any questions for

18   Ms. Snarski?

19            Thank you.

20            Wallula Gap project update, Mr. Barnes.

21                 JOHN BARNES:  Thank you, Chair Drew, and

22   Council members.  For the record, this is John Barnes,

23   EFSEC staff for the Wallula Gap application.

24            EFSEC received on August 29th responses from

25   OneEnergy regarding a request for additional
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 1   information.  The request is the result of an

 2   application review which discovered additional

 3   information was determined to be needed to reach a SEPA

 4   determination for this application.  Staff are

 5   continuing to review the application with our

 6   contractor, contracted agencies, and tribal governments.

 7   Are there any questions?

 8                 CHAIR DREW:  Any questions?

 9            Thank you.

10            Goldeneye BESS.  Mr. Ahmed.

11                 ZIA AHMED:  Thank you, Chair Drew, and

12   Council member.  For the record, this is Zia Ahmed,

13   Siting Specialist for the Goldeneye Battery Energy

14   Storage Projects.

15            Staff from other agencies are continuing to

16   review the ASC and work collaborate with EFSEC.  That's

17   all the updates I have for now.  Let me know if you have

18   any questions.

19                 CHAIR DREW:  Any questions for Mr. Ahmed?

20            Thank you.

21            That concludes the agenda for today.  Thank

22   you, all.  Meeting is adjourned.

23                           (Adjourned at 2:05 p.m.)

24
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		154						LN		5		18		false		         18                      LENNY YOUNG:  Lenny Young.  Present.				false

		155						LN		5		19		false		         19                      ANDREA GRANTHAM:  Utilities and				false

		156						LN		5		20		false		         20        Transportation Commission?				false

		157						LN		5		21		false		         21                      STACY BREWSTER:  Stacy Brewster.  Present.				false

		158						LN		5		22		false		         22                      ANDREA GRANTHAM:  For Local Government and				false

		159						LN		5		23		false		         23        Optional State Agencies.  For the Horse Heaven Project,				false

		160						LN		5		24		false		         24        for Benton County, do we have Ed Brost?				false

		161						LN		5		25		false		         25                 For the Badger Mountain Project, for Douglas				false

		162						PG		6		0		false		page 6				false

		163						LN		6		1		false		          1        County?				false

		164						LN		6		2		false		          2                 For the Wautoma Solar Project, for Benton				false

		165						LN		6		3		false		          3        County, Dave Sharp?				false

		166						LN		6		4		false		          4                 Washington State Department of Transportation,				false

		167						LN		6		5		false		          5        Paul Gonseth?				false

		168						LN		6		6		false		          6                      PAUL GONSETH:  Paul Gonseth.  Present.				false

		169						LN		6		7		false		          7                      ANDREA GRANTHAM:  Hop Hill Solar Project,				false

		170						LN		6		8		false		          8        for Benton County, Paul Krupin?				false

		171						LN		6		9		false		          9                 Carriger Solar Project, for Klickitat County,				false

		172						LN		6		10		false		         10        Matt Chiles?				false

		173						LN		6		11		false		         11                      MATT CHILES:  Matt Chiles.  Present.				false

		174						LN		6		12		false		         12                      ANDREA GRANTHAM:  For the Wallula Gap				false

		175						LN		6		13		false		         13        Project, for Benton County, Adam Fyall?				false

		176						LN		6		14		false		         14                 And for Goldeneye BESS, for Skagit County,				false

		177						LN		6		15		false		         15        Robby Eckroth?				false

		178						LN		6		16		false		         16                      ROBBY ECKROTH:  Robby Eckroth.  Present.				false

		179						LN		6		17		false		         17                      ANDREA GRANTHAM:  Assistant Attorney				false

		180						LN		6		18		false		         18        Generals.  Jon Thompson?				false

		181						LN		6		19		false		         19                 And Zack Packer?				false

		182						LN		6		20		false		         20                      ZACK PACKER:  Present.				false

		183						LN		6		21		false		         21                      ANDREA GRANTHAM:  Administrative Law				false

		184						LN		6		22		false		         22        Judges.  Adam Torem?				false

		185						LN		6		23		false		         23                      JUDGE TOREM:  Judge Torem.  I am present.				false

		186						LN		6		24		false		         24                      ANDREA GRANTHAM:  Laura Bradley?				false

		187						LN		6		25		false		         25                 Dan Gerard?				false

		188						PG		7		0		false		page 7				false

		189						LN		7		1		false		          1                 And Travis Dupree?				false

		190						LN		7		2		false		          2                 And I will call Council staff who may be				false

		191						LN		7		3		false		          3        anticipated to speak today.  Sonia Bumpus?				false

		192						LN		7		4		false		          4                      SONIA BUMPUS:  Present.				false

		193						LN		7		5		false		          5                      ANDREA GRANTHAM:  Ami Hafkemeyer?				false

		194						LN		7		6		false		          6                      AMI HAFKEMEYER:  Present.				false

		195						LN		7		7		false		          7                      ANDREA GRANTHAM:  Amy Moon?				false

		196						LN		7		8		false		          8                      AMY MOON:  Amy Moon.  Present.				false

		197						LN		7		9		false		          9                      ANDREA GRANTHAM:  Sara Randolph?				false

		198						LN		7		10		false		         10                 Sean Greene?				false

		199						LN		7		11		false		         11                      SEAN GREENE:  Sean Greene.  Present.				false

		200						LN		7		12		false		         12                      ANDREA GRANTHAM:  Lance Caputo?				false

		201						LN		7		13		false		         13                      LANCE CAPUTO:  Present.				false

		202						LN		7		14		false		         14                      ANDREA GRANTHAM:  Lance Caputo is present				false

		203						LN		7		15		false		         15        in the room.				false

		204						LN		7		16		false		         16                 John Barnes?				false

		205						LN		7		17		false		         17                      JOHN BARNES:  Present.				false

		206						LN		7		18		false		         18                      ANDREA GRANTHAM:  Joanne Snarski?				false

		207						LN		7		19		false		         19                      JOANNE SNARSKI:  Present.				false

		208						LN		7		20		false		         20                      ANDREA GRANTHAM:  And Zia Ahmed?				false

		209						LN		7		21		false		         21                      ZIA AHMED:  Zia Ahmed.  Present.				false

		210						LN		7		22		false		         22                      ANDREA GRANTHAM:  Operational Updates.				false

		211						LN		7		23		false		         23        For Kittitas Valley Wind?				false

		212						LN		7		24		false		         24                      JARRED CASEDAY:  Jarred Caseday.  Present.				false

		213						LN		7		25		false		         25                      ANDREA GRANTHAM:  Wild Horse Wind Power				false

		214						PG		8		0		false		page 8				false

		215						LN		8		1		false		          1        Project?				false

		216						LN		8		2		false		          2                      JENNIFER GALBRAITH:  Jennifer Galbraith.				false

		217						LN		8		3		false		          3        Present.				false

		218						LN		8		4		false		          4                      ANDREA GRANTHAM:  Grays Harbor Energy				false

		219						LN		8		5		false		          5        Center?				false

		220						LN		8		6		false		          6                 Chehalis Generation Facility?				false

		221						LN		8		7		false		          7                      JEREMY SMITH:  Jeremy Smith.  Present.				false

		222						LN		8		8		false		          8                      ANDREA GRANTHAM:  Columbia Generating				false

		223						LN		8		9		false		          9        Station?				false

		224						LN		8		10		false		         10                      DENIS MEHINAGIC:  Denis Mehinagic.				false

		225						LN		8		11		false		         11        Present.				false

		226						LN		8		12		false		         12                      ANDREA GRANTHAM:  Columbia Solar?				false

		227						LN		8		13		false		         13                      THOMAS CUSHING:  Thomas Cushing.  Present.				false

		228						LN		8		14		false		         14                      ANDREA GRANTHAM:  And Goose Prairie Solar?				false

		229						LN		8		15		false		         15                      JACOB CRIST:  Jacob Crist.  Present.				false

		230						LN		8		16		false		         16                      ANDREA GRANTHAM:  And do we have someone				false

		231						LN		8		17		false		         17        present for the Counsel For the Environment?				false

		232						LN		8		18		false		         18                      SARAH REYNEVELD:  Yes.  Sarah Reyneveld				false

		233						LN		8		19		false		         19        and Yuriy Korol are present.				false

		234						LN		8		20		false		         20                      ANDREA GRANTHAM:  Thank you.				false

		235						LN		8		21		false		         21                 Chair, there is a quorum for all counsels.				false

		236						LN		8		22		false		         22                      CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.				false

		237						LN		8		23		false		         23                 Council members, you have in front of you the				false

		238						LN		8		24		false		         24        agenda, proposed agenda for this meeting.  Is there a				false

		239						LN		8		25		false		         25        motion to adopt the proposed agenda?				false

		240						PG		9		0		false		page 9				false

		241						LN		9		1		false		          1                      LENNY YOUNG:  Lenny Young.  So moved.				false

		242						LN		9		2		false		          2                      STACY BREWSTER:  Stacy Brewster.  Second.				false

		243						LN		9		3		false		          3                      CHAIR DREW:  All those in favor, say				false

		244						LN		9		4		false		          4        "aye."				false

		245						LN		9		5		false		          5                      MULTIPLE SPEAKERS:  Aye.				false

		246						LN		9		6		false		          6                      CHAIR DREW:  Opposed?				false

		247						LN		9		7		false		          7                 It is adopted.				false

		248						LN		9		8		false		          8                 Moving on to the meeting minutes.  We have				false

		249						LN		9		9		false		          9        three sets of meeting minutes for today.  The first we				false

		250						LN		9		10		false		         10        will take up is the August 13, 2024, Goldeneye BESS				false

		251						LN		9		11		false		         11        informational meeting and land-use hearing minutes.  Is				false

		252						LN		9		12		false		         12        there a motion to approve the minutes?				false

		253						LN		9		13		false		         13                      STACY BREWSTER:  Stacy Brewster.  So				false

		254						LN		9		14		false		         14        moved.				false

		255						LN		9		15		false		         15                      CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.				false

		256						LN		9		16		false		         16                 Second?				false

		257						LN		9		17		false		         17                      ELI LEVITT:  Eli Levitt.  Second.				false

		258						LN		9		18		false		         18                      CHAIR DREW:  Thanks.				false

		259						LN		9		19		false		         19                 Any corrections or edits from Council members?				false

		260						LN		9		20		false		         20        I don't have any.				false

		261						LN		9		21		false		         21                 Hearing none, all those in favor of approving				false

		262						LN		9		22		false		         22        the minutes from the Goldeneye BESS August 13th meeting,				false

		263						LN		9		23		false		         23        please say "aye."				false

		264						LN		9		24		false		         24                      MULTIPLE SPEAKERS:  Aye.				false

		265						LN		9		25		false		         25                      CHAIR DREW:  Opposed?				false

		266						PG		10		0		false		page 10				false

		267						LN		10		1		false		          1                 Motion carries.				false

		268						LN		10		2		false		          2                 Moving on to the August 21st monthly Council				false

		269						LN		10		3		false		          3        meeting minutes.  Is there a motion to approve those				false

		270						LN		10		4		false		          4        minutes?				false

		271						LN		10		5		false		          5                      ELIZABETH OSBORNE:  Elizabeth Osborne.  So				false

		272						LN		10		6		false		          6        moved.				false

		273						LN		10		7		false		          7                      MIKE LIVINGSTON:  Mike Livingston --				false

		274						LN		10		8		false		          8                      CHAIR DREW:  Elizabeth Osborne --				false

		275						LN		10		9		false		          9                      MIKE LIVINGSTON:  Mike Livingston.				false

		276						LN		10		10		false		         10        Second.				false

		277						LN		10		11		false		         11                      CHAIR DREW:  Thank you, thank you, thank				false

		278						LN		10		12		false		         12        you.				false

		279						LN		10		13		false		         13                 I have couple of changes/corrections.  I				false

		280						LN		10		14		false		         14        believe, on page 7, on line 1.  Let me see where that				false

		281						LN		10		15		false		         15        is.  If I can look more closely.  Before quoting the				false

		282						LN		10		16		false		         16        governor, I think I should -- there should be a word in				false

		283						LN		10		17		false		         17        their quote.  Can you see where that is, Ms. Grantham?				false

		284						LN		10		18		false		         18                      ANDREA GRANTHAM:  Is this for the Horse				false

		285						LN		10		19		false		         19        Heaven minutes or for the August 21st monthly --				false

		286						LN		10		20		false		         20                      CHAIR DREW:  Oh.				false

		287						LN		10		21		false		         21                      ANDREA GRANTHAM:  -- meeting?				false

		288						LN		10		22		false		         22                      CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.  That's why --				false

		289						LN		10		23		false		         23                      ANDREA GRANTHAM:  Of course.				false

		290						LN		10		24		false		         24                      CHAIR DREW:  -- I didn't find it.  Yes.				false

		291						LN		10		25		false		         25        For the August monthly meeting, I have no corrections.				false

		292						PG		11		0		false		page 11				false

		293						LN		11		1		false		          1                 Anyone else?				false

		294						LN		11		2		false		          2                 Hearing none, all those in favor of approving				false

		295						LN		11		3		false		          3        the August 21, 2024, monthly Council meeting minutes,				false

		296						LN		11		4		false		          4        say "aye."				false

		297						LN		11		5		false		          5                      MULTIPLE SPEAKERS:  Aye.				false

		298						LN		11		6		false		          6                      CHAIR DREW:  Opposed?				false

		299						LN		11		7		false		          7                 Those are approved.				false

		300						LN		11		8		false		          8                 Moving on to the August 29th Horse Heaven				false

		301						LN		11		9		false		          9        special meeting minutes.  A motion to approve the				false

		302						LN		11		10		false		         10        minutes?				false

		303						LN		11		11		false		         11                      STACY BREWSTER:  Stacy Brewster.  So				false

		304						LN		11		12		false		         12        moved.				false

		305						LN		11		13		false		         13                      ELI LEVITT:  Eli Levitt.  Second.				false

		306						LN		11		14		false		         14                      CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.				false

		307						LN		11		15		false		         15                 Now, page 7, line 1.  Let me see where this is.				false

		308						LN		11		16		false		         16        So, really, it's at the beginning of line 1, quote.  It				false

		309						LN		11		17		false		         17        should say on line 25, "I know that he also stated that,				false

		310						LN		11		18		false		         18        quote, the record is robust."  So that's what should go				false

		311						LN		11		19		false		         19        in there.				false

		312						LN		11		20		false		         20                 Then on page 19, line 14, I have an answer to a				false

		313						LN		11		21		false		         21        question from Mr. Livingston, "Well, let me ask one more				false

		314						LN		11		22		false		         22        question.  I'm sorry."  And I say, "No."  I believe I				false

		315						LN		11		23		false		         23        don't ever say that to Council members who have				false

		316						LN		11		24		false		         24        questions.  So even though we don't remember exactly,				false

		317						LN		11		25		false		         25        can we -- without objection, I would say, "No problem."				false

		318						PG		12		0		false		page 12				false

		319						LN		12		1		false		          1        Add the word "problem" in there.  And those are all the				false

		320						LN		12		2		false		          2        corrections that I have.  Anyone else?				false

		321						LN		12		3		false		          3                 All those in favor with -- of those --				false

		322						LN		12		4		false		          4        approving those minutes as amended, please say "aye."				false

		323						LN		12		5		false		          5                      MULTIPLE SPEAKERS:  Aye.				false

		324						LN		12		6		false		          6                      CHAIR DREW:  Opposed?				false

		325						LN		12		7		false		          7                 Motion carries.  Those minutes are amended.				false

		326						LN		12		8		false		          8        Thank you so much to everybody.  And we will move on to				false

		327						LN		12		9		false		          9        Operational Updates.				false

		328						LN		12		10		false		         10                 Kittitas Valley Wind Project, Mr. Caseday.				false

		329						LN		12		11		false		         11                      MR. CASEDAY:  Good afternoon, Chair Drew,				false

		330						LN		12		12		false		         12        EFSEC Council, and staff.  This is Jarred Caseday with				false

		331						LN		12		13		false		         13        EDP Renewables for the Kittitas Valley Wind Power				false

		332						LN		12		14		false		         14        Project.  We have nothing nonroutine to report for the				false

		333						LN		12		15		false		         15        period.				false

		334						LN		12		16		false		         16                      CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.				false

		335						LN		12		17		false		         17                      JARRED CASEDAY:  Thank you.				false

		336						LN		12		18		false		         18                      CHAIR DREW:  Wild Horse Wind Power				false

		337						LN		12		19		false		         19        Project, Ms. Galbraith.				false

		338						LN		12		20		false		         20                      JENNIFER GALBRAITH:  Yes.  Thank you,				false

		339						LN		12		21		false		         21        Chair Drew, Council members, and staff.  This is				false

		340						LN		12		22		false		         22        Jennifer Galbraith with Puget Sound Energy representing				false

		341						LN		12		23		false		         23        the Wild Horse Wind Facility, and I also have nothing				false

		342						LN		12		24		false		         24        nonroutine to report for the period.				false

		343						LN		12		25		false		         25                      CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.				false

		344						PG		13		0		false		page 13				false

		345						LN		13		1		false		          1                 Chehalis Generation Facility, Mr. Smith.				false

		346						LN		13		2		false		          2                      JEREMY SMITH:  Good afternoon, Chair Drew,				false

		347						LN		13		3		false		          3        EFSEC Council, and staff.  Jeremy Smith, the operations				false

		348						LN		13		4		false		          4        manager for the Chehalis Generation Facility, and I have				false

		349						LN		13		5		false		          5        nothing nonroutine to report for the month of August.				false

		350						LN		13		6		false		          6                      CHAIR DREW:  Great.				false

		351						LN		13		7		false		          7                 Grays Harbor Energy Center.  I didn't hear				false

		352						LN		13		8		false		          8        Mr. Sherin.  If he is not there; Mr. Barnes?				false

		353						LN		13		9		false		          9                      JOHN BARNES:  Thank you, Chair Drew, and				false

		354						LN		13		10		false		         10        Council members.  For the record, this is John Barnes on				false

		355						LN		13		11		false		         11        behalf of Sara Randolph, site specialist for Grays				false

		356						LN		13		12		false		         12        Harbor facility.  Update is provided in your packet.				false

		357						LN		13		13		false		         13        There are no other updates to report at this time.				false

		358						LN		13		14		false		         14                      CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.				false

		359						LN		13		15		false		         15                      JOHN BARNES:  Thank you.				false

		360						LN		13		16		false		         16                      CHAIR DREW:  Columbia Solar, Mr. Cushing.				false

		361						LN		13		17		false		         17                      THOMAS CUSHING:  Good afternoon, Chair				false

		362						LN		13		18		false		         18        Drew, Council members, EFSEC staff.  This is Thomas				false

		363						LN		13		19		false		         19        Cushing speaking on behalf of Columbia Solar.  There are				false

		364						LN		13		20		false		         20        no nonroutine updates to report.				false

		365						LN		13		21		false		         21                      CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.				false

		366						LN		13		22		false		         22                 Columbia Generating Station.  Before I go to				false

		367						LN		13		23		false		         23        the facility, itself, I'd like Ms. Amy Moon to give us				false

		368						LN		13		24		false		         24        an update.				false

		369						LN		13		25		false		         25                      AMY MOON:  Thank you, Council Chair Drew.				false

		370						PG		14		0		false		page 14				false

		371						LN		14		1		false		          1                 So good afternoon, EFSEC Council members and				false

		372						LN		14		2		false		          2        Council Chair Drew.  For the record, this is Amy Moon				false

		373						LN		14		3		false		          3        reporting on the Columbia Generating Station.  And I				false

		374						LN		14		4		false		          4        want to give a brief introduction to the Council before				false

		375						LN		14		5		false		          5        Energy Northwest, or EN, provides their Council update.				false

		376						LN		14		6		false		          6                 Energy Northwest is here today to report on two				false

		377						LN		14		7		false		          7        National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System, or the				false

		378						LN		14		8		false		          8        NPDES, permit noncompliance issues.				false

		379						LN		14		9		false		          9                 EFSEC received the required notifications,				false

		380						LN		14		10		false		         10        including a 5-day report for an incident reported				false

		381						LN		14		11		false		         11        September 10th of 2024 involving a release to the				false

		382						LN		14		12		false		         12        Columbia River.  A newly emergent incident was also				false

		383						LN		14		13		false		         13        reported this morning just after 7:30 a.m. to EFSEC, the				false

		384						LN		14		14		false		         14        statewide Environmental Report Tracking System, which is				false

		385						LN		14		15		false		         15        known as ERTS, E-R-T-S, and the U.S. Coast Guard.				false

		386						LN		14		16		false		         16        Ecology staff are in the field today at the Columbia				false

		387						LN		14		17		false		         17        Generating Station to gather information and assess the				false

		388						LN		14		18		false		         18        situation.  Both incidents involved plant service water				false

		389						LN		14		19		false		         19        that flows into the Circulating Water basin and then				false

		390						LN		14		20		false		         20        into the Columbia River.				false

		391						LN		14		21		false		         21                 EFSEC will continue to coordinate with Energy				false

		392						LN		14		22		false		         22        Northwest and Ecology on these reported incidents.  And				false

		393						LN		14		23		false		         23        as I said before, EN is here to update the Council on				false

		394						LN		14		24		false		         24        both incidents and to answer your questions.  I can turn				false

		395						LN		14		25		false		         25        it over to them unless the Council has any questions for				false

		396						PG		15		0		false		page 15				false

		397						LN		15		1		false		          1        me.				false

		398						LN		15		2		false		          2                      CHAIR DREW:  Any questions for Ms. Moon?				false

		399						LN		15		3		false		          3                 Mr. Mehinagic.				false

		400						LN		15		4		false		          4                      DENIS MEHINAGIC:  Good afternoon, Chair				false

		401						LN		15		5		false		          5        Drew, Council members, and staff.  For the record, this				false

		402						LN		15		6		false		          6        is Denis Mehinagic providing updates for Energy				false

		403						LN		15		7		false		          7        Northwest, Columbia Generating Station, and Washington				false

		404						LN		15		8		false		          8        Nuclear Projects 1 and 4.				false

		405						LN		15		9		false		          9                 So on September 10, 2024, at approximately 2:35				false

		406						LN		15		10		false		         10        p.m., Energy Northwest became aware that no more than 30				false

		407						LN		15		11		false		         11        gallons of silicone compressor fluid, Sullair 24KT, have				false

		408						LN		15		12		false		         12        potentially leaked through the service air compressor				false

		409						LN		15		13		false		         13        heat exchanger and entered the Plant Service Water				false

		410						LN		15		14		false		         14        system, also known as TSW.				false

		411						LN		15		15		false		         15                 The compressor was removed from service on				false

		412						LN		15		16		false		         16        September 3rd due to excessive oil consumption.  Despite				false

		413						LN		15		17		false		         17        the lowered oil level, the best information at the time				false

		414						LN		15		18		false		         18        indicated no loss of oil to the TSW system.  The heat				false

		415						LN		15		19		false		         19        exchanger remained out of service and was				false

		416						LN		15		20		false		         20        pressure-tested on September 10th and confirmed to have				false

		417						LN		15		21		false		         21        a leak that would allow the silicone compressor fluid to				false

		418						LN		15		22		false		         22        migrate into TSW.				false

		419						LN		15		23		false		         23                 TSW cools the service air compressor and other				false

		420						LN		15		24		false		         24        non-radioactive loads in the facility before returning				false

		421						LN		15		25		false		         25        to the Circulating Water basin where it's mixed with				false

		422						PG		16		0		false		page 16				false

		423						LN		16		1		false		          1        circulating water and may enter a system again such as				false

		424						LN		16		2		false		          2        TSW, Circulating Water, or Fire Protection water.				false

		425						LN		16		3		false		          3        Because TSW returns to the Circulating Water basin, it				false

		426						LN		16		4		false		          4        can be discharged to the Columbia River with circulating				false

		427						LN		16		5		false		          5        water blowdown.				false

		428						LN		16		6		false		          6                 An investigation is being conducted into what				false

		429						LN		16		7		false		          7        caused the failure of the heat exchanger.  All damaged				false

		430						LN		16		8		false		          8        heat exchanger equipment was replaced and tested before				false

		431						LN		16		9		false		          9        the air compressor was returned to service.  The				false

		432						LN		16		10		false		         10        evaluation is being driven by the Energy Northwest				false

		433						LN		16		11		false		         11        Corrective Action Program and is assigned Condition				false

		434						LN		16		12		false		         12        Report number 461715.				false

		435						LN		16		13		false		         13                 Energy Northwest completed a report within 24				false

		436						LN		16		14		false		         14        hours pursuant to National Pollutant Discharge				false

		437						LN		16		15		false		         15        Elimination System permit condition S3.F.2.b(i), which				false

		438						LN		16		16		false		         16        involved notification via phone to EFSEC via the number				false

		439						LN		16		17		false		         17        that was listed in the NPDES permit.  This notification				false

		440						LN		16		18		false		         18        occurred at approximately 8:35 p.m. on September 10th.				false

		441						LN		16		19		false		         19        Energy Northwest followed up by phone call with EFSEC				false

		442						LN		16		20		false		         20        the morning of September 11, 2024, to ensure that the				false

		443						LN		16		21		false		         21        notification was received.  The United States Coast				false

		444						LN		16		22		false		         22        Guard, and the Washington State Energy Management				false

		445						LN		16		23		false		         23        Division were also immediately notified of the event.				false

		446						LN		16		24		false		         24                 Energy Northwest submitted a NPDES 5-day				false

		447						LN		16		25		false		         25        noncompliance report to EFSEC on September 12, 2024.				false

		448						PG		17		0		false		page 17				false

		449						LN		17		1		false		          1                 Moving on to the second event that Amy Moon				false

		450						LN		17		2		false		          2        mentioned.  So on September 18, 2024, that is today,				false

		451						LN		17		3		false		          3        Columbia Generating Station determined that new				false

		452						LN		17		4		false		          4        repeating oil was likely released into a Plant Service				false

		453						LN		17		5		false		          5        Water system, or TSW, due to a failed heat exchanger on				false

		454						LN		17		6		false		          6        the reactor feed water turbine alpha.  Isolation of the				false

		455						LN		17		7		false		          7        heat exchanger from plant service water is still				false

		456						LN		17		8		false		          8        in-progress.  The Plant Service Water system returns				false

		457						LN		17		9		false		          9        water to the Circulating Water basin, which contains a				false

		458						LN		17		10		false		         10        minimum of 300,000 gallons of water.				false

		459						LN		17		11		false		         11                 The basin, the Circ Water basin, is connected				false

		460						LN		17		12		false		         12        to the Columbia River via a blowdown line.  The blowdown				false

		461						LN		17		13		false		         13        line was secured this morning at 7:39 a.m.  A visual				false

		462						LN		17		14		false		         14        inspection of the basin did not identify any oil sheen				false

		463						LN		17		15		false		         15        or film, but a sample downstream of the affected heat				false

		464						LN		17		16		false		         16        exchanger revealed an oily sheen in the sample bottle.				false

		465						LN		17		17		false		         17        It does not appear that the oil released poses a threat				false

		466						LN		17		18		false		         18        to human health or the environment.  However, because				false

		467						LN		17		19		false		         19        there could have been a discharge of an unknown quantity				false

		468						LN		17		20		false		         20        of oil into the Columbia River, this matter was				false

		469						LN		17		21		false		         21        immediately reported, under RCW 90.56.280, to the United				false

		470						LN		17		22		false		         22        States Coast Guard and Washington State Department of				false

		471						LN		17		23		false		         23        Ecology and to EFSEC.				false

		472						LN		17		24		false		         24                 That is all I had for this matter.  And we are				false

		473						LN		17		25		false		         25        planning on submitting a 5-day report which is tied to				false

		474						PG		18		0		false		page 18				false

		475						LN		18		1		false		          1        this event no later than close of business Monday.				false

		476						LN		18		2		false		          2                      CHAIR DREW:  So do you know if whatever is				false

		477						LN		18		3		false		          3        leaking has been identified and stopped?				false

		478						LN		18		4		false		          4                      DENIS MEHINAGIC:  So regarding the				false

		479						LN		18		5		false		          5        September 10th event, yes.  That heat exchanger was				false

		480						LN		18		6		false		          6        immediately removed from service and isolated, and then				false

		481						LN		18		7		false		          7        that heat exchanger was replaced with a new heat				false

		482						LN		18		8		false		          8        exchanger, and there are no further leaks, regarding the				false

		483						LN		18		9		false		          9        September 10th event.				false

		484						LN		18		10		false		         10                 Regarding today's event, September 18th.  The				false

		485						LN		18		11		false		         11        blowdown is isolated and continues to be isolated while				false

		486						LN		18		12		false		         12        we develop a plan to swap out the damaged heat				false

		487						LN		18		13		false		         13        exchanger, and we are still developing that plan now.				false

		488						LN		18		14		false		         14                      CHAIR DREW:  Okay.				false

		489						LN		18		15		false		         15                      DENIS MEHINAGIC:  But any discharge to the				false

		490						LN		18		16		false		         16        Columbia River has ceased as of 7:39 a.m. this morning.				false

		491						LN		18		17		false		         17                      CHAIR DREW:  And you will have more				false

		492						LN		18		18		false		         18        information as you conduct your analysis, about how				false

		493						LN		18		19		false		         19        long --				false

		494						LN		18		20		false		         20                      DENIS MEHINAGIC:  Yep.				false

		495						LN		18		21		false		         21                      CHAIR DREW:  -- that might have been				false

		496						LN		18		22		false		         22        happening since you found --				false

		497						LN		18		23		false		         23                      DENIS MEHINAGIC:  That is correct.				false

		498						LN		18		24		false		         24                      CHAIR DREW:  -- the -- some oil further				false

		499						LN		18		25		false		         25        downstream.  So.  Okay.				false

		500						PG		19		0		false		page 19				false

		501						LN		19		1		false		          1                 Are there --				false

		502						LN		19		2		false		          2                      DENIS MEHINAGIC:  That is correct.				false

		503						LN		19		3		false		          3                      CHAIR DREW:  -- any other questions from				false

		504						LN		19		4		false		          4        Council members?  Mr. Young?				false

		505						LN		19		5		false		          5                      LENNY YOUNG:  Yeah.  If I remember				false

		506						LN		19		6		false		          6        correctly, these are the second and third incidents of				false

		507						LN		19		7		false		          7        this type that have occurred within the last year.  Is				false

		508						LN		19		8		false		          8        there some type of a higher-level issue here in terms of				false

		509						LN		19		9		false		          9        age of the equipment or the inspection regime?  What can				false

		510						LN		19		10		false		         10        we take away from three such equipment failures				false

		511						LN		19		11		false		         11        occurring within a short period of time?				false

		512						LN		19		12		false		         12                      DENIS MEHINAGIC:  Good question, and thank				false

		513						LN		19		13		false		         13        you for that.				false

		514						LN		19		14		false		         14                 We are evaluating, looking at the extended				false

		515						LN		19		15		false		         15        conditions on all heat exchangers that are cooled by				false

		516						LN		19		16		false		         16        TSW.  We had a meeting with our engineering department				false

		517						LN		19		17		false		         17        yesterday to discuss an evaluation of that type.  So.				false

		518						LN		19		18		false		         18        We will have more information to share, and we can share				false

		519						LN		19		19		false		         19        that information at future Council meetings and with Amy				false

		520						LN		19		20		false		         20        Moon.				false

		521						LN		19		21		false		         21                      CHAIR DREW:  Go ahead, Mr. Young.				false

		522						LN		19		22		false		         22                      LENNY YOUNG:  Yes.  Thank you for that.  I				false

		523						LN		19		23		false		         23        appreciate it.  I guess where I am headed is, it would				false

		524						LN		19		24		false		         24        be nice to see if the facility could get out in front of				false

		525						LN		19		25		false		         25        these things if there is some type of a higher-level,				false

		526						PG		20		0		false		page 20				false

		527						LN		20		1		false		          1        overarching issue that needs to be confronted, instead				false

		528						LN		20		2		false		          2        of -- instead of having to continue to react to them on				false

		529						LN		20		3		false		          3        an as-failed basis.				false

		530						LN		20		4		false		          4                      DENIS MEHINAGIC:  Yep.  I understand.				false

		531						LN		20		5		false		          5                      LENNY YOUNG:  Thank you.				false

		532						LN		20		6		false		          6                      CHAIR DREW:  Any other questions?				false

		533						LN		20		7		false		          7                 Thank you very much, and we look forward to				false

		534						LN		20		8		false		          8        hearing ongoing reports.				false

		535						LN		20		9		false		          9                 Moving on to Goose Prairie Solar project				false

		536						LN		20		10		false		         10        update, Mr. Crist.				false

		537						LN		20		11		false		         11                      JACOB CRIST:  Thank you.  And good				false

		538						LN		20		12		false		         12        afternoon, Chair Drew, EFSEC Council, and staff.  Jacob				false

		539						LN		20		13		false		         13        Crist, Senior Project Manager, on behalf of Brookfield				false

		540						LN		20		14		false		         14        Renewable U.S., providing the Goose Prairie Solar				false

		541						LN		20		15		false		         15        project update for this period.				false

		542						LN		20		16		false		         16                 So for construction status.  The project				false

		543						LN		20		17		false		         17        remains ahead of contractual schedule still.  We have				false

		544						LN		20		18		false		         18        achieved some of our latest milestones on time with --				false

		545						LN		20		19		false		         19        as far as an initial sink date on August 26th, and then				false

		546						LN		20		20		false		         20        an actual start of the BPA 90-day soak was on				false

		547						LN		20		21		false		         21        August 26th.  Hot commissioning of all our inverters has				false

		548						LN		20		22		false		         22        been completed since September 6th, including all punch				false

		549						LN		20		23		false		         23        list items.  We are still targeting substantial				false

		550						LN		20		24		false		         24        completion.  It's somewhat of a moving date right now.				false

		551						LN		20		25		false		         25        It's scheduled to be around early October now instead of				false

		552						PG		21		0		false		page 21				false

		553						LN		21		1		false		          1        mid September.  We would -- we will be waiting on a				false

		554						LN		21		2		false		          2        utility sign-off, and then we can declare a commercial				false

		555						LN		21		3		false		          3        operation date.  That is expected on or around				false

		556						LN		21		4		false		          4        November 25th still.  We would like to pull that in some				false

		557						LN		21		5		false		          5        if we can.				false

		558						LN		21		6		false		          6                 I have mentioned, you know, all major scope				false

		559						LN		21		7		false		          7        items are complete, with modules, racking, trackers, and				false

		560						LN		21		8		false		          8        substation.  BPA curtailment checks are in progress, and				false

		561						LN		21		9		false		          9        the BPA coms checks are still in progress.  Capacity and				false

		562						LN		21		10		false		         10        availability testing will follow shortly after those BPA				false

		563						LN		21		11		false		         11        coms checks and curtailment checks.  And again, that's				false

		564						LN		21		12		false		         12        scheduled for early October, as of now.				false

		565						LN		21		13		false		         13                 We did commit the first grass cutting				false

		566						LN		21		14		false		         14        contracted through our EPC.  That started in late August				false

		567						LN		21		15		false		         15        for the vegetation and weed management plan and				false

		568						LN		21		16		false		         16        scheduled to be completed by early October.				false

		569						LN		21		17		false		         17                 Right now, for operations and maintenance, we				false

		570						LN		21		18		false		         18        are still tracking the O&M site certificate deliverables				false

		571						LN		21		19		false		         19        with Sarah and her team for whenever they are approved,				false

		572						LN		21		20		false		         20        and declaring COD.				false

		573						LN		21		21		false		         21                 For environmental compliance.  We had no				false

		574						LN		21		22		false		         22        discharge on the site reported in August, and then the				false

		575						LN		21		23		false		         23        frequent monitoring does occur.				false

		576						LN		21		24		false		         24                 And then for two other items.  Next Council				false

		577						LN		21		25		false		         25        meeting for October, I will introduce Nelson Jia, who				false

		578						PG		22		0		false		page 22				false

		579						LN		22		1		false		          1        will start providing operational updates in November.				false

		580						LN		22		2		false		          2        He would be Brookfield's asset manager for this site.				false

		581						LN		22		3		false		          3                 And then for public outreach -- or, really,				false

		582						LN		22		4		false		          4        visits to the site.  It sounds like we have some				false

		583						LN		22		5		false		          5        visits -- a visit coming up in mid October from public				false

		584						LN		22		6		false		          6        officials for the State of Washington.				false

		585						LN		22		7		false		          7                 Any questions?				false

		586						LN		22		8		false		          8                      CHAIR DREW:  Any questions for Mr. Crist?				false

		587						LN		22		9		false		          9                 Thank you.  Exciting time.  We are with you and				false

		588						LN		22		10		false		         10        looking forward to the transition, and thanking you for				false

		589						LN		22		11		false		         11        all the work and leadership you have had throughout this				false

		590						LN		22		12		false		         12        time.				false

		591						LN		22		13		false		         13                      JACOB CRIST:  Thank you.				false

		592						LN		22		14		false		         14                      CHAIR DREW:  Moving on to High Top and				false

		593						LN		22		15		false		         15        Ostrea.  We have a project update.  I will ask				false

		594						LN		22		16		false		         16        Mr. Barnes.  And then the Construction Stormwater				false

		595						LN		22		17		false		         17        General Permit, I am going to ask Ms. Ami Hafkemeyer.				false

		596						LN		22		18		false		         18                      JOHN BARNES:  Thank you, Council, and				false

		597						LN		22		19		false		         19        Chair Drew.  This is John Barnes on behalf of Sara				false

		598						LN		22		20		false		         20        Randolph, site specialist for Ostrea.				false

		599						LN		22		21		false		         21                 EFSEC staff are continuing to receive and				false

		600						LN		22		22		false		         22        review documents being sent by the certificate holder				false

		601						LN		22		23		false		         23        for preconstruction plans.  As a condition of the Site				false

		602						LN		22		24		false		         24        Certificate Agreement, or SCA, Article IV(D)(1), the				false

		603						LN		22		25		false		         25        facility is required to obtain a Construction Stormwater				false

		604						PG		23		0		false		page 23				false

		605						LN		23		1		false		          1        General Permit prior to construction.  EFSEC issues				false

		606						LN		23		2		false		          2        coverage under the Department of Ecology General Permit.				false

		607						LN		23		3		false		          3                 In your packet, you will find a letter of				false

		608						LN		23		4		false		          4        coverage that identifies the procedural differences				false

		609						LN		23		5		false		          5        between Ecology, General Permit, and EFSEC's				false

		610						LN		23		6		false		          6        authorities.  Some examples include enforcement				false

		611						LN		23		7		false		          7        authority, e-structure, and transfer of ownership.				false

		612						LN		23		8		false		          8        Ostrea Solar submitted their notice of intent, or NOI,				false

		613						LN		23		9		false		          9        for coverage under this permit on August 29th.				false

		614						LN		23		10		false		         10                      CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.				false

		615						LN		23		11		false		         11                      JOHN BARNES:  Thank you.				false

		616						LN		23		12		false		         12                      CHAIR DREW:  Ms. Hafkemeyer.				false

		617						LN		23		13		false		         13                      AMI HAFKEMEYER:  Thank you.				false

		618						LN		23		14		false		         14                 Good afternoon, Chair Drew, and Council.  And				false

		619						LN		23		15		false		         15        thank you, Mr. Barnes, for the introduction.				false

		620						LN		23		16		false		         16                 As he stated, EFSEC adopts the Ecology				false

		621						LN		23		17		false		         17        Construction Stormwater General Permit.  However, there				false

		622						LN		23		18		false		         18        are some differences, as identified, in the Ecology				false

		623						LN		23		19		false		         19        process and the EFSEC process primarily to do with				false

		624						LN		23		20		false		         20        appeals, reporting, fees, et cetera.  And so staff would				false

		625						LN		23		21		false		         21        like to request that the Council put out for a 30-day				false

		626						LN		23		22		false		         22        comment this letter of coverage to then be issued along				false

		627						LN		23		23		false		         23        with the Construction Stormwater General Permit to the				false

		628						LN		23		24		false		         24        facility.				false

		629						LN		23		25		false		         25                      CHAIR DREW:  Okay.  So once we -- talk to				false

		630						PG		24		0		false		page 24				false

		631						LN		24		1		false		          1        me about the process after that comment period, please.				false

		632						LN		24		2		false		          2                      AMI HAFKEMEYER:  Of course.  So in the				false

		633						LN		24		3		false		          3        development of the Construction Stormwater General				false

		634						LN		24		4		false		          4        Permit, Ecology issued that document out for public				false

		635						LN		24		5		false		          5        comment.  So that public comment is -- for that document				false

		636						LN		24		6		false		          6        is already complete, so EFSEC requests public comment				false

		637						LN		24		7		false		          7        for our letter of coverage specifically.				false

		638						LN		24		8		false		          8                 Once any comments are received, if any changes				false

		639						LN		24		9		false		          9        are indicated that should be made, if they are				false

		640						LN		24		10		false		         10        substantive, EFSEC may request that we go out again for				false

		641						LN		24		11		false		         11        public comment if it's, you know, correcting of minor				false

		642						LN		24		12		false		         12        typos or something like that.  EFSEC would request that				false

		643						LN		24		13		false		         13        the Council issue the permit.				false
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          1                      CHAIR DREW:  Okay.  Good afternoon.



          2        Kathleen Drew, Chair of the Energy Facility Site



          3        Evaluation Council, bringing our monthly meeting to



          4        order.



          5                 Ms. Grantham, will you call the role.



          6                      ANDREA GRANTHAM:  Certainly, Chair Drew.



          7                 Department of Commerce?



          8                      ELIZABETH OSBORNE:  Elizabeth Osborne.



          9        Present.



         10                      ANDREA GRANTHAM:  Department of Ecology?



         11                      ELI LEVITT:  Eli Levitt.  Present.



         12                      ANDREA GRANTHAM:  Department of Fish and



         13        Wildlife?



         14                      MIKE LIVINGSTON:  Mike Livingston.



         15        Present.



         16                      ANDREA GRANTHAM:  Department of Natural



         17        Resources?



         18                      LENNY YOUNG:  Lenny Young.  Present.



         19                      ANDREA GRANTHAM:  Utilities and



         20        Transportation Commission?



         21                      STACY BREWSTER:  Stacy Brewster.  Present.



         22                      ANDREA GRANTHAM:  For Local Government and



         23        Optional State Agencies.  For the Horse Heaven Project,



         24        for Benton County, do we have Ed Brost?



         25                 For the Badger Mountain Project, for Douglas
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          1        County?



          2                 For the Wautoma Solar Project, for Benton



          3        County, Dave Sharp?



          4                 Washington State Department of Transportation,



          5        Paul Gonseth?



          6                      PAUL GONSETH:  Paul Gonseth.  Present.



          7                      ANDREA GRANTHAM:  Hop Hill Solar Project,



          8        for Benton County, Paul Krupin?



          9                 Carriger Solar Project, for Klickitat County,



         10        Matt Chiles?



         11                      MATT CHILES:  Matt Chiles.  Present.



         12                      ANDREA GRANTHAM:  For the Wallula Gap



         13        Project, for Benton County, Adam Fyall?



         14                 And for Goldeneye BESS, for Skagit County,



         15        Robby Eckroth?



         16                      ROBBY ECKROTH:  Robby Eckroth.  Present.



         17                      ANDREA GRANTHAM:  Assistant Attorney



         18        Generals.  Jon Thompson?



         19                 And Zack Packer?



         20                      ZACK PACKER:  Present.



         21                      ANDREA GRANTHAM:  Administrative Law



         22        Judges.  Adam Torem?



         23                      JUDGE TOREM:  Judge Torem.  I am present.



         24                      ANDREA GRANTHAM:  Laura Bradley?



         25                 Dan Gerard?
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          1                 And Travis Dupree?



          2                 And I will call Council staff who may be



          3        anticipated to speak today.  Sonia Bumpus?



          4                      SONIA BUMPUS:  Present.



          5                      ANDREA GRANTHAM:  Ami Hafkemeyer?



          6                      AMI HAFKEMEYER:  Present.



          7                      ANDREA GRANTHAM:  Amy Moon?



          8                      AMY MOON:  Amy Moon.  Present.



          9                      ANDREA GRANTHAM:  Sara Randolph?



         10                 Sean Greene?



         11                      SEAN GREENE:  Sean Greene.  Present.



         12                      ANDREA GRANTHAM:  Lance Caputo?



         13                      LANCE CAPUTO:  Present.



         14                      ANDREA GRANTHAM:  Lance Caputo is present



         15        in the room.



         16                 John Barnes?



         17                      JOHN BARNES:  Present.



         18                      ANDREA GRANTHAM:  Joanne Snarski?



         19                      JOANNE SNARSKI:  Present.



         20                      ANDREA GRANTHAM:  And Zia Ahmed?



         21                      ZIA AHMED:  Zia Ahmed.  Present.



         22                      ANDREA GRANTHAM:  Operational Updates.



         23        For Kittitas Valley Wind?



         24                      JARRED CASEDAY:  Jarred Caseday.  Present.



         25                      ANDREA GRANTHAM:  Wild Horse Wind Power
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          1        Project?



          2                      JENNIFER GALBRAITH:  Jennifer Galbraith.



          3        Present.



          4                      ANDREA GRANTHAM:  Grays Harbor Energy



          5        Center?



          6                 Chehalis Generation Facility?



          7                      JEREMY SMITH:  Jeremy Smith.  Present.



          8                      ANDREA GRANTHAM:  Columbia Generating



          9        Station?



         10                      DENIS MEHINAGIC:  Denis Mehinagic.



         11        Present.



         12                      ANDREA GRANTHAM:  Columbia Solar?



         13                      THOMAS CUSHING:  Thomas Cushing.  Present.



         14                      ANDREA GRANTHAM:  And Goose Prairie Solar?



         15                      JACOB CRIST:  Jacob Crist.  Present.



         16                      ANDREA GRANTHAM:  And do we have someone



         17        present for the Counsel For the Environment?



         18                      SARAH REYNEVELD:  Yes.  Sarah Reyneveld



         19        and Yuriy Korol are present.



         20                      ANDREA GRANTHAM:  Thank you.



         21                 Chair, there is a quorum for all counsels.



         22                      CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.



         23                 Council members, you have in front of you the



         24        agenda, proposed agenda for this meeting.  Is there a



         25        motion to adopt the proposed agenda?
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          1                      LENNY YOUNG:  Lenny Young.  So moved.



          2                      STACY BREWSTER:  Stacy Brewster.  Second.



          3                      CHAIR DREW:  All those in favor, say



          4        "aye."



          5                      MULTIPLE SPEAKERS:  Aye.



          6                      CHAIR DREW:  Opposed?



          7                 It is adopted.



          8                 Moving on to the meeting minutes.  We have



          9        three sets of meeting minutes for today.  The first we



         10        will take up is the August 13, 2024, Goldeneye BESS



         11        informational meeting and land-use hearing minutes.  Is



         12        there a motion to approve the minutes?



         13                      STACY BREWSTER:  Stacy Brewster.  So



         14        moved.



         15                      CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.



         16                 Second?



         17                      ELI LEVITT:  Eli Levitt.  Second.



         18                      CHAIR DREW:  Thanks.



         19                 Any corrections or edits from Council members?



         20        I don't have any.



         21                 Hearing none, all those in favor of approving



         22        the minutes from the Goldeneye BESS August 13th meeting,



         23        please say "aye."



         24                      MULTIPLE SPEAKERS:  Aye.



         25                      CHAIR DREW:  Opposed?
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          1                 Motion carries.



          2                 Moving on to the August 21st monthly Council



          3        meeting minutes.  Is there a motion to approve those



          4        minutes?



          5                      ELIZABETH OSBORNE:  Elizabeth Osborne.  So



          6        moved.



          7                      MIKE LIVINGSTON:  Mike Livingston --



          8                      CHAIR DREW:  Elizabeth Osborne --



          9                      MIKE LIVINGSTON:  Mike Livingston.



         10        Second.



         11                      CHAIR DREW:  Thank you, thank you, thank



         12        you.



         13                 I have couple of changes/corrections.  I



         14        believe, on page 7, on line 1.  Let me see where that



         15        is.  If I can look more closely.  Before quoting the



         16        governor, I think I should -- there should be a word in



         17        their quote.  Can you see where that is, Ms. Grantham?



         18                      ANDREA GRANTHAM:  Is this for the Horse



         19        Heaven minutes or for the August 21st monthly --



         20                      CHAIR DREW:  Oh.



         21                      ANDREA GRANTHAM:  -- meeting?



         22                      CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.  That's why --



         23                      ANDREA GRANTHAM:  Of course.



         24                      CHAIR DREW:  -- I didn't find it.  Yes.



         25        For the August monthly meeting, I have no corrections.
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          1                 Anyone else?



          2                 Hearing none, all those in favor of approving



          3        the August 21, 2024, monthly Council meeting minutes,



          4        say "aye."



          5                      MULTIPLE SPEAKERS:  Aye.



          6                      CHAIR DREW:  Opposed?



          7                 Those are approved.



          8                 Moving on to the August 29th Horse Heaven



          9        special meeting minutes.  A motion to approve the



         10        minutes?



         11                      STACY BREWSTER:  Stacy Brewster.  So



         12        moved.



         13                      ELI LEVITT:  Eli Levitt.  Second.



         14                      CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.



         15                 Now, page 7, line 1.  Let me see where this is.



         16        So, really, it's at the beginning of line 1, quote.  It



         17        should say on line 25, "I know that he also stated that,



         18        quote, the record is robust."  So that's what should go



         19        in there.



         20                 Then on page 19, line 14, I have an answer to a



         21        question from Mr. Livingston, "Well, let me ask one more



         22        question.  I'm sorry."  And I say, "No."  I believe I



         23        don't ever say that to Council members who have



         24        questions.  So even though we don't remember exactly,



         25        can we -- without objection, I would say, "No problem."
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          1        Add the word "problem" in there.  And those are all the



          2        corrections that I have.  Anyone else?



          3                 All those in favor with -- of those --



          4        approving those minutes as amended, please say "aye."



          5                      MULTIPLE SPEAKERS:  Aye.



          6                      CHAIR DREW:  Opposed?



          7                 Motion carries.  Those minutes are amended.



          8        Thank you so much to everybody.  And we will move on to



          9        Operational Updates.



         10                 Kittitas Valley Wind Project, Mr. Caseday.



         11                      MR. CASEDAY:  Good afternoon, Chair Drew,



         12        EFSEC Council, and staff.  This is Jarred Caseday with



         13        EDP Renewables for the Kittitas Valley Wind Power



         14        Project.  We have nothing nonroutine to report for the



         15        period.



         16                      CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.



         17                      JARRED CASEDAY:  Thank you.



         18                      CHAIR DREW:  Wild Horse Wind Power



         19        Project, Ms. Galbraith.



         20                      JENNIFER GALBRAITH:  Yes.  Thank you,



         21        Chair Drew, Council members, and staff.  This is



         22        Jennifer Galbraith with Puget Sound Energy representing



         23        the Wild Horse Wind Facility, and I also have nothing



         24        nonroutine to report for the period.



         25                      CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.
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          1                 Chehalis Generation Facility, Mr. Smith.



          2                      JEREMY SMITH:  Good afternoon, Chair Drew,



          3        EFSEC Council, and staff.  Jeremy Smith, the operations



          4        manager for the Chehalis Generation Facility, and I have



          5        nothing nonroutine to report for the month of August.



          6                      CHAIR DREW:  Great.



          7                 Grays Harbor Energy Center.  I didn't hear



          8        Mr. Sherin.  If he is not there; Mr. Barnes?



          9                      JOHN BARNES:  Thank you, Chair Drew, and



         10        Council members.  For the record, this is John Barnes on



         11        behalf of Sara Randolph, site specialist for Grays



         12        Harbor facility.  Update is provided in your packet.



         13        There are no other updates to report at this time.



         14                      CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.



         15                      JOHN BARNES:  Thank you.



         16                      CHAIR DREW:  Columbia Solar, Mr. Cushing.



         17                      THOMAS CUSHING:  Good afternoon, Chair



         18        Drew, Council members, EFSEC staff.  This is Thomas



         19        Cushing speaking on behalf of Columbia Solar.  There are



         20        no nonroutine updates to report.



         21                      CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.



         22                 Columbia Generating Station.  Before I go to



         23        the facility, itself, I'd like Ms. Amy Moon to give us



         24        an update.



         25                      AMY MOON:  Thank you, Council Chair Drew.
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          1                 So good afternoon, EFSEC Council members and



          2        Council Chair Drew.  For the record, this is Amy Moon



          3        reporting on the Columbia Generating Station.  And I



          4        want to give a brief introduction to the Council before



          5        Energy Northwest, or EN, provides their Council update.



          6                 Energy Northwest is here today to report on two



          7        National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System, or the



          8        NPDES, permit noncompliance issues.



          9                 EFSEC received the required notifications,



         10        including a 5-day report for an incident reported



         11        September 10th of 2024 involving a release to the



         12        Columbia River.  A newly emergent incident was also



         13        reported this morning just after 7:30 a.m. to EFSEC, the



         14        statewide Environmental Report Tracking System, which is



         15        known as ERTS, E-R-T-S, and the U.S. Coast Guard.



         16        Ecology staff are in the field today at the Columbia



         17        Generating Station to gather information and assess the



         18        situation.  Both incidents involved plant service water



         19        that flows into the Circulating Water basin and then



         20        into the Columbia River.



         21                 EFSEC will continue to coordinate with Energy



         22        Northwest and Ecology on these reported incidents.  And



         23        as I said before, EN is here to update the Council on



         24        both incidents and to answer your questions.  I can turn



         25        it over to them unless the Council has any questions for
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          1        me.



          2                      CHAIR DREW:  Any questions for Ms. Moon?



          3                 Mr. Mehinagic.



          4                      DENIS MEHINAGIC:  Good afternoon, Chair



          5        Drew, Council members, and staff.  For the record, this



          6        is Denis Mehinagic providing updates for Energy



          7        Northwest, Columbia Generating Station, and Washington



          8        Nuclear Projects 1 and 4.



          9                 So on September 10, 2024, at approximately 2:35



         10        p.m., Energy Northwest became aware that no more than 30



         11        gallons of silicone compressor fluid, Sullair 24KT, have



         12        potentially leaked through the service air compressor



         13        heat exchanger and entered the Plant Service Water



         14        system, also known as TSW.



         15                 The compressor was removed from service on



         16        September 3rd due to excessive oil consumption.  Despite



         17        the lowered oil level, the best information at the time



         18        indicated no loss of oil to the TSW system.  The heat



         19        exchanger remained out of service and was



         20        pressure-tested on September 10th and confirmed to have



         21        a leak that would allow the silicone compressor fluid to



         22        migrate into TSW.



         23                 TSW cools the service air compressor and other



         24        non-radioactive loads in the facility before returning



         25        to the Circulating Water basin where it's mixed with
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          1        circulating water and may enter a system again such as



          2        TSW, Circulating Water, or Fire Protection water.



          3        Because TSW returns to the Circulating Water basin, it



          4        can be discharged to the Columbia River with circulating



          5        water blowdown.



          6                 An investigation is being conducted into what



          7        caused the failure of the heat exchanger.  All damaged



          8        heat exchanger equipment was replaced and tested before



          9        the air compressor was returned to service.  The



         10        evaluation is being driven by the Energy Northwest



         11        Corrective Action Program and is assigned Condition



         12        Report number 461715.



         13                 Energy Northwest completed a report within 24



         14        hours pursuant to National Pollutant Discharge



         15        Elimination System permit condition S3.F.2.b(i), which



         16        involved notification via phone to EFSEC via the number



         17        that was listed in the NPDES permit.  This notification



         18        occurred at approximately 8:35 p.m. on September 10th.



         19        Energy Northwest followed up by phone call with EFSEC



         20        the morning of September 11, 2024, to ensure that the



         21        notification was received.  The United States Coast



         22        Guard, and the Washington State Energy Management



         23        Division were also immediately notified of the event.



         24                 Energy Northwest submitted a NPDES 5-day



         25        noncompliance report to EFSEC on September 12, 2024.
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          1                 Moving on to the second event that Amy Moon



          2        mentioned.  So on September 18, 2024, that is today,



          3        Columbia Generating Station determined that new



          4        repeating oil was likely released into a Plant Service



          5        Water system, or TSW, due to a failed heat exchanger on



          6        the reactor feed water turbine alpha.  Isolation of the



          7        heat exchanger from plant service water is still



          8        in-progress.  The Plant Service Water system returns



          9        water to the Circulating Water basin, which contains a



         10        minimum of 300,000 gallons of water.



         11                 The basin, the Circ Water basin, is connected



         12        to the Columbia River via a blowdown line.  The blowdown



         13        line was secured this morning at 7:39 a.m.  A visual



         14        inspection of the basin did not identify any oil sheen



         15        or film, but a sample downstream of the affected heat



         16        exchanger revealed an oily sheen in the sample bottle.



         17        It does not appear that the oil released poses a threat



         18        to human health or the environment.  However, because



         19        there could have been a discharge of an unknown quantity



         20        of oil into the Columbia River, this matter was



         21        immediately reported, under RCW 90.56.280, to the United



         22        States Coast Guard and Washington State Department of



         23        Ecology and to EFSEC.



         24                 That is all I had for this matter.  And we are



         25        planning on submitting a 5-day report which is tied to

�







                                                                         18







          1        this event no later than close of business Monday.



          2                      CHAIR DREW:  So do you know if whatever is



          3        leaking has been identified and stopped?



          4                      DENIS MEHINAGIC:  So regarding the



          5        September 10th event, yes.  That heat exchanger was



          6        immediately removed from service and isolated, and then



          7        that heat exchanger was replaced with a new heat



          8        exchanger, and there are no further leaks, regarding the



          9        September 10th event.



         10                 Regarding today's event, September 18th.  The



         11        blowdown is isolated and continues to be isolated while



         12        we develop a plan to swap out the damaged heat



         13        exchanger, and we are still developing that plan now.



         14                      CHAIR DREW:  Okay.



         15                      DENIS MEHINAGIC:  But any discharge to the



         16        Columbia River has ceased as of 7:39 a.m. this morning.



         17                      CHAIR DREW:  And you will have more



         18        information as you conduct your analysis, about how



         19        long --



         20                      DENIS MEHINAGIC:  Yep.



         21                      CHAIR DREW:  -- that might have been



         22        happening since you found --



         23                      DENIS MEHINAGIC:  That is correct.



         24                      CHAIR DREW:  -- the -- some oil further



         25        downstream.  So.  Okay.
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          1                 Are there --



          2                      DENIS MEHINAGIC:  That is correct.



          3                      CHAIR DREW:  -- any other questions from



          4        Council members?  Mr. Young?



          5                      LENNY YOUNG:  Yeah.  If I remember



          6        correctly, these are the second and third incidents of



          7        this type that have occurred within the last year.  Is



          8        there some type of a higher-level issue here in terms of



          9        age of the equipment or the inspection regime?  What can



         10        we take away from three such equipment failures



         11        occurring within a short period of time?



         12                      DENIS MEHINAGIC:  Good question, and thank



         13        you for that.



         14                 We are evaluating, looking at the extended



         15        conditions on all heat exchangers that are cooled by



         16        TSW.  We had a meeting with our engineering department



         17        yesterday to discuss an evaluation of that type.  So.



         18        We will have more information to share, and we can share



         19        that information at future Council meetings and with Amy



         20        Moon.



         21                      CHAIR DREW:  Go ahead, Mr. Young.



         22                      LENNY YOUNG:  Yes.  Thank you for that.  I



         23        appreciate it.  I guess where I am headed is, it would



         24        be nice to see if the facility could get out in front of



         25        these things if there is some type of a higher-level,
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          1        overarching issue that needs to be confronted, instead



          2        of -- instead of having to continue to react to them on



          3        an as-failed basis.



          4                      DENIS MEHINAGIC:  Yep.  I understand.



          5                      LENNY YOUNG:  Thank you.



          6                      CHAIR DREW:  Any other questions?



          7                 Thank you very much, and we look forward to



          8        hearing ongoing reports.



          9                 Moving on to Goose Prairie Solar project



         10        update, Mr. Crist.



         11                      JACOB CRIST:  Thank you.  And good



         12        afternoon, Chair Drew, EFSEC Council, and staff.  Jacob



         13        Crist, Senior Project Manager, on behalf of Brookfield



         14        Renewable U.S., providing the Goose Prairie Solar



         15        project update for this period.



         16                 So for construction status.  The project



         17        remains ahead of contractual schedule still.  We have



         18        achieved some of our latest milestones on time with --



         19        as far as an initial sink date on August 26th, and then



         20        an actual start of the BPA 90-day soak was on



         21        August 26th.  Hot commissioning of all our inverters has



         22        been completed since September 6th, including all punch



         23        list items.  We are still targeting substantial



         24        completion.  It's somewhat of a moving date right now.



         25        It's scheduled to be around early October now instead of
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          1        mid September.  We would -- we will be waiting on a



          2        utility sign-off, and then we can declare a commercial



          3        operation date.  That is expected on or around



          4        November 25th still.  We would like to pull that in some



          5        if we can.



          6                 I have mentioned, you know, all major scope



          7        items are complete, with modules, racking, trackers, and



          8        substation.  BPA curtailment checks are in progress, and



          9        the BPA coms checks are still in progress.  Capacity and



         10        availability testing will follow shortly after those BPA



         11        coms checks and curtailment checks.  And again, that's



         12        scheduled for early October, as of now.



         13                 We did commit the first grass cutting



         14        contracted through our EPC.  That started in late August



         15        for the vegetation and weed management plan and



         16        scheduled to be completed by early October.



         17                 Right now, for operations and maintenance, we



         18        are still tracking the O&M site certificate deliverables



         19        with Sarah and her team for whenever they are approved,



         20        and declaring COD.



         21                 For environmental compliance.  We had no



         22        discharge on the site reported in August, and then the



         23        frequent monitoring does occur.



         24                 And then for two other items.  Next Council



         25        meeting for October, I will introduce Nelson Jia, who
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          1        will start providing operational updates in November.



          2        He would be Brookfield's asset manager for this site.



          3                 And then for public outreach -- or, really,



          4        visits to the site.  It sounds like we have some



          5        visits -- a visit coming up in mid October from public



          6        officials for the State of Washington.



          7                 Any questions?



          8                      CHAIR DREW:  Any questions for Mr. Crist?



          9                 Thank you.  Exciting time.  We are with you and



         10        looking forward to the transition, and thanking you for



         11        all the work and leadership you have had throughout this



         12        time.



         13                      JACOB CRIST:  Thank you.



         14                      CHAIR DREW:  Moving on to High Top and



         15        Ostrea.  We have a project update.  I will ask



         16        Mr. Barnes.  And then the Construction Stormwater



         17        General Permit, I am going to ask Ms. Ami Hafkemeyer.



         18                      JOHN BARNES:  Thank you, Council, and



         19        Chair Drew.  This is John Barnes on behalf of Sara



         20        Randolph, site specialist for Ostrea.



         21                 EFSEC staff are continuing to receive and



         22        review documents being sent by the certificate holder



         23        for preconstruction plans.  As a condition of the Site



         24        Certificate Agreement, or SCA, Article IV(D)(1), the



         25        facility is required to obtain a Construction Stormwater
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          1        General Permit prior to construction.  EFSEC issues



          2        coverage under the Department of Ecology General Permit.



          3                 In your packet, you will find a letter of



          4        coverage that identifies the procedural differences



          5        between Ecology, General Permit, and EFSEC's



          6        authorities.  Some examples include enforcement



          7        authority, e-structure, and transfer of ownership.



          8        Ostrea Solar submitted their notice of intent, or NOI,



          9        for coverage under this permit on August 29th.



         10                      CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.



         11                      JOHN BARNES:  Thank you.



         12                      CHAIR DREW:  Ms. Hafkemeyer.



         13                      AMI HAFKEMEYER:  Thank you.



         14                 Good afternoon, Chair Drew, and Council.  And



         15        thank you, Mr. Barnes, for the introduction.



         16                 As he stated, EFSEC adopts the Ecology



         17        Construction Stormwater General Permit.  However, there



         18        are some differences, as identified, in the Ecology



         19        process and the EFSEC process primarily to do with



         20        appeals, reporting, fees, et cetera.  And so staff would



         21        like to request that the Council put out for a 30-day



         22        comment this letter of coverage to then be issued along



         23        with the Construction Stormwater General Permit to the



         24        facility.



         25                      CHAIR DREW:  Okay.  So once we -- talk to
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          1        me about the process after that comment period, please.



          2                      AMI HAFKEMEYER:  Of course.  So in the



          3        development of the Construction Stormwater General



          4        Permit, Ecology issued that document out for public



          5        comment.  So that public comment is -- for that document



          6        is already complete, so EFSEC requests public comment



          7        for our letter of coverage specifically.



          8                 Once any comments are received, if any changes



          9        are indicated that should be made, if they are



         10        substantive, EFSEC may request that we go out again for



         11        public comment if it's, you know, correcting of minor



         12        typos or something like that.  EFSEC would request that



         13        the Council issue the permit.



         14                      CHAIR DREW:  Okay.  So we will receive the



         15        public comments in the next 30 days.  And after that, it



         16        would come back to the Council with any of those



         17        comments.



         18                      AMI HAFKEMEYER:  Correct.



         19                      CHAIR DREW:  Okay.  Thank you.



         20                 Any questions from Council members?



         21                 Is there a motion from Council members to put



         22        the letter of coverage for Cyprus Creek Renewables on



         23        behalf of Ostrea Solar Facility out for public comment?



         24                      LENNY YOUNG:  Lenny Young.  So moved.



         25                      CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.
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          1                 Second?



          2                      STACEY BREWSTER:  Stacy Brewster.  Second.



          3                      CHAIR DREW:  Any discussion or questions?



          4                 Hearing none, all those in favor of putting



          5        this coverage letter out for public comment for 30 days,



          6        please say "aye."



          7                      MULTIPLE SPEAKERS:  Aye.



          8                      CHAIR DREW:  Opposed?



          9                 Motion carries.  Thank you.



         10                 Horse Heaven Wind Farm, Ms. Moon.



         11                      AMY MOON:  Good afternoon, Council Chair



         12        Drew and EFSEC members.  For the record, this is Amy



         13        Moon reporting on the Horse Heaven Wind Project.



         14                 As directed by the Council on September 13th of



         15        2024, EFSEC staff applied the Council's changes to the



         16        draft Site Certification Agreement, or SCA, and the



         17        appendix to mitigation measures.  EFSEC staff submitted



         18        the final Site Certification Agreement, including those



         19        mitigation measures and the public comments received, to



         20        the governor on September 17th.  Pursuant to Revised



         21        Code of Washington 80.50.100(1)(b), the governor shall



         22        either approve the application and execute the



         23        certification agreement or reject the application.  If



         24        the governor rejects the application, that rejection



         25        shall be the final decision on the Scout Clean Energy
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          1        February 8, 2021, application for site certification.



          2                 Does the Council have any questions?



          3                      CHAIR DREW:  Are there any questions from



          4        Council members?



          5                 Thank you, Ms. Moon.



          6                      AMY MOON:  You're welcome.



          7                      CHAIR DREW:  Wautoma Solar project update,



          8        Mr. Caputo.



          9                      LANCE CAPUTO:  Thank you, Chair Drew, and



         10        Council members.  The adjudicative proceeding for the



         11        Wautoma Solar Energy Project is scheduled for Wednesday,



         12        September 25, beginning at 9:00 a.m.  All documents for



         13        Council review are available in the Council's



         14        SharePoint.  Staff can provide assistance in locating



         15        these if any of you are having difficulties.  The



         16        subsequent Public Hearing -- excuse me.  The subsequent



         17        Public Comment Hearing Session is scheduled for Thursday



         18        evening, October 3rd, beginning at 5:00 p.m.  Thank you.



         19                 May I answer any questions?



         20                      CHAIR DREW:  So again for Council members.



         21        There are pre-filed documents for the hearing already on



         22        our SharePoint site.



         23                      LANCE CAPUTO:  That is correct.



         24                      CHAIR DREW:  So if you need any assistance



         25        finding those, perhaps staff can send a link to the
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          1        Wautoma Council members just to kind of have that right



          2        in front of us because, you know, it's helpful to review



          3        all of that ahead-of-time before, and we all will be



          4        doing that before the adjudication.



          5                      LANCE CAPUTO:  We will do that for you.



          6                      CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.



          7                 I also want to comment because, those of you



          8        who are seeing our report, we have new editions, which I



          9        am very happy to see, which is that it's identifying



         10        where in our site certification process each project is



         11        and the location of the project.  So.  Thank you, staff,



         12        for adding those to our information sheets.



         13                 So for the public.  You can also look those up



         14        and follow them on a month-to-month basis.



         15                 Any questions from Council members about



         16        Wautoma or the adjudicative process coming up?



         17                 Okay.  Moving on to the Hop Hill Solar project



         18        update, Mr. Barnes.



         19                      JOHN BARNES:  Thank you, Chair Drew, and



         20        Council members.  For the record, this is John Barnes,



         21        EFSEC staff for the Hop Hill application.



         22                 We are continuing with the applicant to



         23        complete studies and reports needed to make a SEPA



         24        determination.  We continue to coordinate and review the



         25        application with our contractor, contracted agencies,
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          1        and tribal governments.  Are there any questions?



          2                      CHAIR DREW:  Any questions from Council



          3        members?



          4                 Okay.  Carriger Solar project update,



          5        Ms. Snarski.



          6                      JOANNE SNARSKI:  Thank you, Chair Drew,



          7        and Council members.  For the record, this is Joanne



          8        Snarski, the siting specialist for Carriger Solar.



          9                 In August, we received an updated amendment to



         10        the Wetland and Waterbodies Delineation Report



         11        previously submitted in 2023.  This amendment was in



         12        response to comments received from Ecology both in



         13        writing and during a field visit conducted in -- last



         14        spring.  We anticipate final comments from Ecology in



         15        mid October on that report.



         16                 May I answer any questions?



         17                      CHAIR DREW:  Are there any questions for



         18        Ms. Snarski?



         19                 Thank you.



         20                 Wallula Gap project update, Mr. Barnes.



         21                      JOHN BARNES:  Thank you, Chair Drew, and



         22        Council members.  For the record, this is John Barnes,



         23        EFSEC staff for the Wallula Gap application.



         24                 EFSEC received on August 29th responses from



         25        OneEnergy regarding a request for additional
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          1        information.  The request is the result of an



          2        application review which discovered additional



          3        information was determined to be needed to reach a SEPA



          4        determination for this application.  Staff are



          5        continuing to review the application with our



          6        contractor, contracted agencies, and tribal governments.



          7        Are there any questions?



          8                      CHAIR DREW:  Any questions?



          9                 Thank you.



         10                 Goldeneye BESS.  Mr. Ahmed.



         11                      ZIA AHMED:  Thank you, Chair Drew, and



         12        Council member.  For the record, this is Zia Ahmed,



         13        Siting Specialist for the Goldeneye Battery Energy



         14        Storage Projects.



         15                 Staff from other agencies are continuing to



         16        review the ASC and work collaborate with EFSEC.  That's



         17        all the updates I have for now.  Let me know if you have



         18        any questions.



         19                      CHAIR DREW:  Any questions for Mr. Ahmed?



         20                 Thank you.



         21                 That concludes the agenda for today.  Thank



         22        you, all.  Meeting is adjourned.



         23                                (Adjourned at 2:05 p.m.)



         24



         25
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